

STATE OF MINNESOTA

Journal of the House

NINETY-FOURTH SESSION — 2025

SIXTEENTH LEGISLATIVE DAY

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2025

The House of Representatives convened at 12:15 p.m. and was called to order by Lisa Demuth, Speaker of the House.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Andrew Lundstrom, Marshall EFree Church, Marshall, Minnesota.

The members of the House gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called and the following members were present:

Acomb	Dotseth	Heintzeman	Kozlowski	Norris	Smith
Agbaje	Duran	Hemmingsen-Jaeger	Koznick	Novotny	Stephenson
Allen	Elkins	Her	Kraft	O'Driscoll	Stier
Altendorf	Engen	Hicks	Kresha	Olson	Swedzinski
Anderson, P. E.	Falconer	Hill	Lawrence	Pérez-Vega	Tabke
Anderson, P. H.	Feist	Hollins	Lee, F.	Perryman	Torkelson
Backer	Finke	Hortman	Lee, K.	Pinto	Van Binsbergen
Bahner	Fischer	Howard	Liebling	Pursell	Vang
Bakeberg	Fogelman	Hudson	Lillie	Quam	Virngig
Baker	Franson	Huot	Long	Rehm	Warwas
Bennett	Frazier	Hussein	Mahamoud	Rehrauer	West
Berg	Frederick	Igo	McDonald	Repinski	Wiener
Bierman	Freiberg	Jacob	Mekeland	Reyer	Witte
Bliss	Gander	Johnson, P.	Moller	Roach	Wolgamott
Burkel	Gillman	Johnson, W.	Momanyi-Hiltsley	Robbins	Xiong
Carroll	Gomez	Jones	Mueller	Rymer	Youakim
Cha	Gordon	Jordan	Murphy	Schomacker	Zeleznikar
Clardy	Gottfried	Joy	Myers	Schultz	Spk. Demuth
Coulter	Greene	Keeler	Nadeau	Schwartz	
Curran	Greenman	Klevorn	Nash	Scott	
Davids	Hansen, R.	Knudsen	Nelson	Sencer-Mura	
Davis	Hanson, J.	Koegel	Niska	Sexton	
Dippel	Harder	Kotyza-Witthuhn	Noor	Skraba	

A quorum was present.

Rarick was excused.

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. There being no objection, further reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal was approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk.

This document can be made available in alternative formats upon request. Call (651) 296-2314 [voice] or the Minnesota State Relay Service at 1-800-627-3529 [TTY] for assistance; or visit the website at <http://www.house.mn>.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The following communication was received:

STATE OF MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
ST. PAUL 55155

The Honorable Lisa Demuth
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Bobby Joe Champion
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Act of the 2025 Session of the State Legislature has been received from the Office of the Governor and is deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

<i>S. F. No.</i>	<i>H. F. No.</i>	<i>Session Laws Chapter No.</i>	<i>Time and Date Approved 2025</i>	<i>Date Filed 2025</i>
202		2	1:20 p.m. March 28	March 28

Sincerely,

STEVE SIMON
Secretary of State

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES AND DIVISIONS

Bennett and Jordan from the Committee on Education Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 62, A bill for an act relating to education; providing references to statutes governing student attendance; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 120A.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, line 6, before "The" insert "(a)"

Page 1, after line 8, insert:

"(b) The inclusion or exclusion of a provision related to attendance in this section is not intended to have any substantive legal effect. The cross-references used in this section are intended solely to indicate the contents of the cross-referenced section and are not part of the cross-referenced statute. The cross-references are not substantive and may not be used to construe or limit the meaning of any statutory language. Users of this section must consult the language of each cross-referenced law to fully understand the scope and effect of the statute."

Renumber the subdivisions in sequence and correct internal references

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 264, A bill for an act relating to corrections; providing for improved medical care in licensed facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 241.021, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Davids and Gomez from the Committee on Taxes to which was referred:

H. F. No. 363, A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; establishing a credit for certain acres certified under the Minnesota agricultural water quality certification program; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 273.1392; 273.1393; 275.065, subdivision 3; 276.04, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 273.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, lines 18 and 19, delete "general" and insert "clean water"

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

The report was adopted.

Backer and Bierman from the Committee on Health Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1010, A bill for an act relating to health occupations; amending certain definitions to include licensed certified midwife; establishing licensure for certified midwives; establishing civil and criminal penalties; expanding medical assistance coverage to licensed certified midwife services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 147D.03, subdivision 1; 148.241; 151.01, subdivision 23; 152.12, subdivision 1; 256B.0625, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 148G.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, line 23, after "care" insert "beginning in adolescence"

Page 2, line 25, delete "across the life span"

Page 3, line 14, after the first comma, insert "is"

Page 3, line 30, after "means" insert "a program of theory and practice, offered by"

Page 3, line 31, delete "that provides a program of theory and practice" and insert a comma

Page 4, line 3, after "midwife" insert "within the scope of certified midwifery practice"

Page 4, line 23, delete "certified midwife" and insert "person"

Page 5, line 3, after "midwifery" insert "education"

Page 6, lines 1 and 4, delete "certified midwifery" and insert "license"

Page 6, line 14, delete "desiring" and insert "and who desires"

Page 6, line 18, after "current" insert "licensure"

Page 8, line 9, delete "license and" and after "certification" insert "or recertification" and delete "license and"

Page 8, line 10, after "certification" insert "or recertification"

Page 8, line 18, delete "An institution" and insert "A university or college" and after "midwifery" insert "education"

Page 8, line 19, delete "institution" and insert "university or college"

Page 8, line 26, delete "institution" and insert "university or college"

Page 8, lines 30 and 33, after "midwifery" insert "education"

Page 9, lines 2, 3, 8, and 10, after "midwifery" insert "education"

Page 9, line 10, delete "midwifery's" and insert "midwifery education"

Page 9, line 18, delete "a person applying for a license" and insert "an applicant for licensure"

Page 10, line 16, after the semicolon, insert "by reason of the"

Page 13, line 29, delete ", paragraph (h)"

Page 14, line 8, delete "licensure" and insert "application for license"

Page 17, line 26, delete "or" and insert "and"

Page 19, line 22, after "license" insert a comma

Page 20, line 1, delete "section" and insert "chapter"

Page 20, line 9, delete "certified midwife" and insert "person"

Page 20, line 15, delete the first "or"

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

The report was adopted.

Backer and Bierman from the Committee on Health Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1011, A bill for an act relating to health occupations; modifying limitations on optometrists prescribing and administering drugs; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 148.56, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Liebling and Scott from the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1027, A bill for an act relating to real property; providing for mortgage foreclosure redemption and surpluses; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 272.45; 580.10; 580.225; 580.24; 580.25; 580.26; 580.28; 582.03, subdivisions 1, 2; 582.043, subdivision 6.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, line 22, after "address" insert ", or if no street address is assigned for the property on the property tax statement, to the taxpayer's address on the property tax statement."

Page 3, line 1, delete "the sheriff determines"

Page 3, line 2, after "or" insert "if it appears to the sheriff"

Page 10, line 14, delete "30" and insert "60"

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Bliss and Xiong from the Veterans and Military Affairs Division to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1042, A bill for an act relating to public safety; amending the authority of the Independent Use of Force Investigations Unit to investigate certain offenses that occur on state-owned military installations; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 299C.80, subdivision 3.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Bennett and Jordan from the Committee on Education Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1053, A bill for an act relating to education; encouraging reenrollment after student withdrawal from school; requiring notification and resources for the family of an unenrolled child; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 126C.05, subdivision 8, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Education Finance.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1083, A bill for an act relating to witnesses; prohibiting domestic abuse advocates from disclosing certain information; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 595.02, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 4, line 16, after "paragraph" insert "(1)"

Page 4, line 17, after "260E" insert ", or (2) modifies a prosecutor's obligation to disclose material and information to the defense when the information is in the possession or control of members of the prosecution staff and of any others who have participated in the investigation or evaluation of the case and who either regularly report, or with reference to the particular case have reported, to the prosecutor's office"

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1094, A bill for an act relating to public safety; clarifying eligibility for certain expungements or resentencings involving past cannabis crimes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 609A.06, subdivision 3.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 609A.06, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Eligibility; cannabis offense.** (a) A person is eligible for an expungement or resentencing to a lesser offense if:

(1) the person was convicted of, or adjudication was stayed for, a violation of ~~any of the following a first-, second-, third-, fourth-, or fifth-degree controlled substance crime~~ involving the sale or possession of marijuana or tetrahydrocannabinols:

~~(i) section 152.021, subdivision 1, clause (6);~~

~~(ii) section 152.021, subdivision 2, clause (6);~~

~~(iii) section 152.022, subdivision 1, clause (5), or clause (7), item (iii);~~

~~(iv) section 152.022, subdivision 2, clause (6);~~

~~(v) section 152.023, subdivision 1, clause (5);~~

~~(vi) section 152.023, subdivision 2, clause (5);~~

~~(vii) section 152.024, subdivision (4); or~~

~~(viii) section 152.025, subdivision 2, clause (1) under Minnesota Statutes 2023 Supplement, section 152.021, 152.022, 152.023, 152.024, or 152.025, or a previous version of those or any other statutes criminalizing the possession, sale, transportation, or cultivation of marijuana or tetrahydrocannabinols;~~

(2) the offense did not involve a dangerous weapon, the intentional infliction of bodily harm on another, an attempt to inflict bodily harm on another, or an act committed with the intent to cause fear in another of immediate bodily harm or death;

(3) the act on which the charge was based would either be a lesser offense or no longer be a crime after August 1, 2023; and

(4) the person did not appeal the conviction, any appeal was denied, or the deadline to file an appeal has expired.

(b) For purposes of this subdivision, a "lesser offense" means a nonfelony offense if the person was charged with a felony.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Backer and Bierman from the Committee on Health Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1165, A bill for an act relating to health care facility finance; restructuring and renaming the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority as the Minnesota Health and Education Facilities Authority; authorizing the authority to construct and finance health care facilities; increasing bonding capacity; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 3.732, subdivision 1; 10A.01, subdivision 35; 136A.25; 136A.26; 136A.27; 136A.28; 136A.29, subdivisions 1, 3, 6, 9, 10, 14, 19, 20, 21, 22, by adding a subdivision; 136A.32, subdivisions 1, 4, by adding a subdivision; 136A.33; 136A.34, subdivisions 3, 4; 136A.36; 136A.38; 136A.41; 136A.42; 136F.67, subdivision 1; 354B.20, subdivision 7; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 136A.29, subdivision 4.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Higher Education Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1265, A bill for an act relating to corrections; revising American Indian cultural programming services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 241.80.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Koegel and Koznick from the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1520, A bill for an act relating to public safety; modifying various provisions governing drivers' licenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 171.0605, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision; 171.17, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, after line 5, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 169A.55, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Reinstatement of driving privileges; certain criminal vehicular operation offenses.** A person whose driver's license has been revoked under section 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(1)~~ (2) (revocation, criminal vehicular operation), or suspended under section 171.187 (suspension, criminal vehicular operation), for a violation of section 609.2113, subdivision 1, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4), subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4), or subdivision 3, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or section 609.2114, subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii) (criminal vehicular operation, alcohol-related provisions), resulting in bodily harm, substantial bodily harm, or great bodily harm, shall not be eligible for reinstatement of driving privileges until the person has submitted to the commissioner verification of the use of ignition interlock for the applicable time period specified in those sections. To be eligible for reinstatement under this subdivision, a person shall utilize an ignition interlock device that meets the performance standards and certification requirements under subdivision 4, paragraph (c)."

Page 3, line 11, strike "shall" and insert "must"

Page 4, line 9, strike "shall" and insert "must"

Page 4, after line 11, insert:

"Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 171.2405, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Establishment.** (a) A city or county may establish a license reinstatement diversion program for holders of class D drivers' licenses who have been charged with violating section 171.24, subdivision 1 or 2. An individual charged with driving after revocation under section 171.24, subdivision 2, is eligible for diversion only if the revocation was due to a violation of section 169.791; 169.797; 169A.52; 169A.54; 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(6)~~ (7); or 171.177. An individual who is a holder of a commercial driver's license or who has committed an offense in a commercial motor vehicle is not eligible to participate in the diversion program. Nothing in this section authorizes the issuance of a driver's license to a diversion program participant during the underlying suspension or revocation period at issue in the violation of section 171.24, subdivision 1 or 2.

(b) Notwithstanding any law or ordinance to the contrary, a city or county may contract with a third party to create and administer the diversion program under this section. Any participating city or county, at its own expense, may request an audit of the administrator.

(c) For purposes of this section, "administrator" means the city, county, or administrator of the program.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 171.301, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Conditions of issuance.** (a) The commissioner may issue a reintegration driver's license to any person:

(1) who is 18 years of age or older;

(2) who has been released from a period of at least 180 consecutive days of confinement or incarceration in:

(i) an adult correctional facility under the control of the commissioner of corrections or licensed by the commissioner of corrections under section 241.021;

(ii) a federal correctional facility for adults; or

(iii) an adult correctional facility operated under the control or supervision of any other state; and

(3) whose license has been suspended or revoked under the circumstances listed in section 171.30, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clauses (1) to (4), for a violation that occurred before the individual was incarcerated for the period described in clause (2).

(b) If the person's driver's license or permit to drive has been revoked under section 169.792 or 169.797, the commissioner may only issue a reintegration driver's license to the person after the person has presented an insurance identification card, policy, or written statement indicating that the driver or owner has insurance coverage satisfactory to the commissioner.

(c) If the person's driver's license or permit to drive has been suspended under section 171.186, the commissioner may only issue a reintegration driver's license to the person after the commissioner receives notice of a court order provided pursuant to section 518A.65, paragraph (e), showing that the person's driver's license or operating privileges should no longer be suspended.

(d) If the person's driver's license has been revoked under section 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause (1) or (2), the commissioner may only issue a reintegration driver's license to the person after the person has completed the applicable revocation period.

(e) The commissioner must not issue a reintegration driver's license:

(1) to any person described in section 171.04, subdivision 1, clause (7), (8), (10), or (11);

(2) to any person described in section 169A.55, subdivision 5;

(3) if the person has committed a violation after the person was released from custody that results in the suspension, revocation, or cancellation of a driver's license, including suspension for nonpayment of child support or maintenance payments as described in section 171.186, subdivision 1; or

(4) if the issuance would conflict with the requirements of the nonresident violator compact.

(f) The commissioner must not issue a class A, class B, or class C reintegration driver's license.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 171.306, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** (a) As used in this section, the terms in this subdivision have the meanings given them.

(b) "Ignition interlock device" or "device" means equipment that is designed to measure breath alcohol concentration and to prevent a motor vehicle's ignition from being started by a person whose breath alcohol concentration measures 0.02 or higher on the equipment.

(c) "Location tracking capabilities" means the ability of an electronic or wireless device to identify and transmit its geographic location through the operation of the device.

(d) "Program participant" means a person who has qualified to take part in the ignition interlock program under this section, and whose driver's license has been:

(1) revoked, canceled, or denied under section 169A.52; 169A.54; 171.04, subdivision 1, clause (10); or 171.177; or

(2) revoked under section 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(1)~~ (2), or suspended under section 171.187, for a violation of section 609.2113, subdivision 1, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or subdivision 3, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or 609.2114, subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4), resulting in bodily harm, substantial bodily harm, or great bodily harm.

(e) "Qualified prior impaired driving incident" has the meaning given in section 169A.03, subdivision 22.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 171.306, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Issuance of restricted license.** (a) The commissioner shall issue a class D driver's license, subject to the applicable limitations and restrictions of this section, to a program participant who meets the requirements of this section and the program guidelines. The commissioner shall not issue a license unless the program participant has provided satisfactory proof that:

(1) a certified ignition interlock device has been installed on the participant's motor vehicle at an installation service center designated by the device's manufacturer; and

(2) the participant has insurance coverage on the vehicle equipped with the ignition interlock device. If the participant has previously been convicted of violating section 169.791, 169.793, or 169.797 or the participant's license has previously been suspended, revoked, or canceled under section 169.792 or 169.797, the commissioner shall require the participant to present an insurance identification card that is certified by the insurance company to be noncancelable for a period not to exceed 12 months.

(b) A license issued under authority of this section must contain a restriction prohibiting the program participant from driving, operating, or being in physical control of any motor vehicle not equipped with a functioning ignition interlock device certified by the commissioner. A participant may drive an employer-owned vehicle not equipped with an interlock device while in the normal course and scope of employment duties pursuant to the program guidelines established by the commissioner and with the employer's written consent.

(c) A program participant whose driver's license has been: (1) revoked under section 169A.52, subdivision 3, paragraph (a), clause (1), (2), or (3), or subdivision 4, paragraph (a), clause (1), (2), or (3); 169A.54, subdivision 1, clause (1), (2), (3), or (4); or 171.177, subdivision 4, paragraph (a), clause (1), (2), or (3), or subdivision 5, paragraph (a), clause (1), (2), or (3); or (2) revoked under section 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(4)~~ (2), or suspended under section 171.187, for a violation of section 609.2113, subdivision 1, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or subdivision 3, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or 609.2114, subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4), resulting in bodily harm, substantial bodily harm, or great bodily harm, where the participant has fewer than two qualified prior impaired driving incidents within the past ten years or fewer than three qualified prior impaired driving incidents ever; may apply for conditional reinstatement of the driver's license, subject to the ignition interlock restriction.

(d) A program participant whose driver's license has been: (1) revoked, canceled, or denied under section 169A.52, subdivision 3, paragraph (a), clause (4), (5), or (6), or subdivision 4, paragraph (a), clause (4), (5), or (6); 169A.54, subdivision 1, clause (5), (6), or (7); or 171.177, subdivision 4, paragraph (a), clause (4), (5), or (6), or subdivision 5, paragraph (a), clause (4), (5), or (6); or (2) revoked under section 171.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(4)~~ (2), or suspended under section 171.187, for a violation of section 609.2113, subdivision 1, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or subdivision 3, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4); or 609.2114, subdivision 2, clause (2), item (i) or (iii), (3), or (4), resulting in bodily harm, substantial bodily harm, or great bodily harm, where the participant has two or more qualified prior impaired driving incidents within the past ten years or three or more qualified prior impaired driving incidents ever; may apply for conditional reinstatement of the driver's license, subject to the ignition interlock restriction, if the program participant is enrolled in a licensed substance use disorder treatment or rehabilitation program as recommended in a chemical use assessment. As a prerequisite to eligibility for eventual reinstatement of full driving privileges, a participant whose chemical use assessment recommended treatment or rehabilitation shall complete a licensed substance use disorder treatment or rehabilitation program. If the program participant's ignition interlock device subsequently registers a positive breath alcohol concentration of 0.02 or higher, the commissioner shall extend the time period that the participant must participate in the program until the participant has reached the required abstinence period described in section 169A.55, subdivision 4.

(e) Notwithstanding any statute or rule to the contrary, the commissioner has authority to determine when a program participant is eligible for restoration of full driving privileges, except that the commissioner shall not reinstate full driving privileges until the program participant has met all applicable prerequisites for reinstatement under section 169A.55 and until the program participant's device has registered no positive breath alcohol concentrations of 0.02 or higher during the preceding 90 days."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Liebling and Scott from the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1567, A bill for an act relating to government data practices; extending to public safety officers the personal information protections currently available for judicial officials; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 13.991; 609.5151; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 626.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, delete section 1 and insert:

"Section 1. **[13.807] PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICER DATA; PERSONAL INFORMATION.**

(a) Subject to paragraph (b), the personal information of all public safety officers collected, created, or maintained by a government entity is private data on individuals. For purposes of this section, the terms "personal information" and "public safety officer" have the meanings given in section 626.97, subdivision 1.

(b) If the responsible authority or government entity violates this chapter, the remedies and penalties under this chapter are available only if the public safety officer making a claim previously provided written notification to the responsible authority confirming on a form provided by the commissioner of the Department of Public Safety that they are entitled to protection under section 626.97. If the subject of the data is an adult child of a public safety officer who does not reside with the public safety officer, the remedies and penalties under this chapter are available only if the adult child previously provided written notification to the responsible authority confirming their status as the child of a public safety officer. In the case of county records, the form shall be filed with the responsible authority that maintains the personal information for which the public safety officer is seeking protection. A form submitted under this section is private data on individuals. A notice filed under this paragraph expires five years following the date of filing, unless it is renewed prior to the expiration date.

(c) This section shall not apply to personal information contained in:

(1) real property records as defined in section 13.045, subdivision 1, clause (5);

(2) Uniform Commercial Code filings and tax liens maintained by the secretary of state; and

(3) any other records maintained by a government entity evidencing title to, or any lien, judgment, or other encumbrance on, real or personal property."

Page 2, line 26, delete "both correctional officers and law enforcement officials" and insert "a correctional officer or a law enforcement official"

Page 4, line 6, delete "or" and insert a comma and before the period insert ", a former peace officer, or a former correctional officer"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, delete everything after the semicolon and insert "providing personal information protections to public safety officers"

Page 1, line 3, delete everything before the semicolon

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Freiberg and Quam from the Committee on Elections Finance and Government Operations to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1596, A bill for an act relating to Metropolitan Council; modifying government data classification of investigative information pertaining to certain Metropolitan Council personnel; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 13.43, subdivision 2.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1659, A bill for an act relating to corrections; clarifying reporting requirements related to community supervision; exempting federal law enforcement agents who transport persons from definition of protective agent; repealing obsolete civil commitment law regarding incarcerated individuals with mental illness; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 326.338, subdivision 4; 401.10, subdivision 4; 401.17, subdivisions 1, 5; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 253.21; 253.23.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, after line 8, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 241.80, is amended to read:

241.80 AMERICAN INDIAN CULTURAL PROGRAM.

Subdivision 1. **Authority.** The commissioner of corrections shall develop a policy to provide the cultural programming services listed in subdivision 2 to American Indian ~~inmates~~ incarcerated individuals of all juvenile and adult state correctional facilities and community-based correctional programs. The commissioner may, within the limits of available money, contract with appropriate American Indian private, nonprofit organizations to provide the cultural programming services.

Subd. 2. **Cultural programming services.** The policy shall include, but need not be limited to, providing, within the limits of available money, spiritual and cultural programming services having the following purposes:

(1) the ~~teaching of good work habits and the~~ development of ~~motivation through work~~ education and training needed for postincarceration self-sufficiency;

(2) the development of ~~cultural pride to improve~~ strengthened American Indian self-image identity;

~~(3) the development of an understanding of and an adjustment to the cultural differences between American Indians and other ethnic groups;~~

(3) improved understanding of American Indian culture, traditions, and spiritual practices for Department of Corrections staff;

~~(4) the development of attitudes of mutual trust, respect, and understanding among American Indian family members~~ partnerships with Tribal Nations to address the unique needs of American Indian incarcerated individuals and promote approaches to rehabilitation specific to this population;

~~(5) the fostering of increased availability of medicine men and American Indian spiritual leaders to teach American Indian inmates~~ incarcerated individuals about American Indian history; and cultural sensitivity, and religion and spiritual practices;

(6) the involvement of American Indian ~~inmates~~ incarcerated individuals in those aspects of the correctional system that will aid in their rehabilitation; and

(7) the provision of services to American Indian ~~inmates~~ incarcerated individuals that will facilitate their reentry into the community."

Reorder the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon, insert "modifying cultural program for American Indian incarcerated individuals;"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Moller and Novotny from the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1744, A bill for an act relating to public safety; authorizing expanded use of tracking devices for fleeing motor vehicles; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 626A.35, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 626A.35, subdivision 2b, is amended to read:

Subd. 2b. **Exception; stolen motor vehicles.** (a) The prohibition under subdivision 1 does not apply to the use of a mobile tracking device on a stolen motor vehicle when:

(1) the consent of the owner of the vehicle has been obtained; or

(2) the owner of the motor vehicle has reported to law enforcement that the vehicle is stolen, ~~and the vehicle is occupied when the tracking device is installed~~ and the stolen vehicle is not on private property.

(b) Within ~~24~~ 12 hours of a tracking device being attached to a vehicle pursuant to the authority granted in paragraph (a), clause (2), an officer employed by the agency that attached the tracking device to the vehicle must remove the device, disable the device, or obtain a search warrant granting approval to continue to use the device in the investigation.

(c) A peace officer employed by the agency that attached a tracking device to a stolen motor vehicle must remove the tracking device if the vehicle is recovered and returned to the owner.

(d) Any tracking device evidence collected after the motor vehicle is returned to the owner is inadmissible.

(e) When a peace officer attaches a tracking device to a stolen vehicle pursuant to paragraph (a), clause (2), the peace officer must prepare a report that includes the evidence relied upon to establish the vehicle was reported stolen, the date and time the device was attached to the vehicle, the method used to attach the device to the vehicle, the duration for which the tracking device was attached to the vehicle, and an explanation of how the device impacted the outcome of the investigation. Reports created under this paragraph must be retained as part of the criminal investigation file.

(f) By August 1, 2024, and each year thereafter, the chief law enforcement officer of an agency that obtains a search warrant under paragraph (b), must provide notice to the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension of the number of search warrants the agency obtained under this subdivision in the preceding 12 months. The superintendent must provide a summary of the data received pursuant to this paragraph in the bureau's biennial report to the legislature required under section 299C.18.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 626A.35, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2c. **Exception; fleeing motor vehicles.** (a) The prohibition under subdivision 1 does not apply to the use of a mobile tracking device on a fleeing motor vehicle.

(b) If a mobile tracking device is attached to a vehicle pursuant to the authority granted in paragraph (a) and the vehicle is not in the custody of law enforcement within 12 hours of the mobile tracking device being attached to the vehicle, an officer employed by the agency that attached the tracking device to the vehicle must remove the device, disable the device, or obtain a search warrant granting approval to continue to use the device in the investigation.

(c) A peace officer employed by the agency that attached a tracking device to a fleeing motor vehicle must remove the tracking device if the vehicle is recovered, determined to be stolen, and returned to the owner. Any tracking device evidence collected after the motor vehicle is returned to the owner is inadmissible.

(d) When a peace officer attaches a tracking device to a fleeing vehicle pursuant to paragraph (a), the peace officer must prepare a report that includes the evidence relied upon to establish the vehicle was fleeing, the date and time the device was attached to the vehicle, the method used to attach the device to the vehicle, the duration for which the tracking device was attached to the vehicle, and an explanation of how the device impacted the outcome of the investigation. Reports created under this paragraph must be retained as part of the criminal investigation file.

(e) By August 1, 2026, and each year thereafter, the chief law enforcement officer of an agency that obtains a search warrant under paragraph (b) must provide notice to the superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension of the number of search warrants the agency obtained under this subdivision in the preceding 12 months. The superintendent must provide a summary of the data received pursuant to this paragraph in the bureau's biennial report to the legislature required under section 299C.18.

(f) For purposes of this subdivision, "flee" has the meaning given in section 609.487, subdivision 1."

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Noor and Schomacker from the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1861, A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing for human services; modifying the duties of certain facilities that confine people relating to phone calls and other communication services; specifying duties of certain direct care and treatment programs relating to phone calls and other communications; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 241.252; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 246.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Liebling and Scott from the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1915, A bill for an act relating to child care; requiring child care centers to use video security cameras to monitor infants and toddlers; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 142D.23, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 142B.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, line 10, after "recordings" insert "; access to recordings"

Page 2, after line 30, insert:

"(f) A licensed child care center must establish appropriate security safeguards for the video security camera recordings required under this section, including procedures for ensuring that the recordings are only accessible to persons whose work assignment reasonably requires access to the recordings, and are only accessed by those persons for purposes described in the procedure. All queries and responses, and all actions in which the recordings are accessed, shared, or disseminated, must be recorded in a data audit trail. Data contained in the audit trail are subject to the same requirements as the underlying recording under this section."

Page 4, line 6, delete "and"

Page 4, line 8, delete the period and insert " ; and"

Page 4, after line 8, insert:

"(5) the center's security safeguards and procedures regarding employee access to the recordings."

Page 4, after line 16, insert:

"Subd. 9. **Annual audit.** The commissioner must conduct, as part of the annual licensing inspection required under this chapter, an audit to determine whether the center's use of video security cameras complies with the requirements of this section, including but not limited to all requirements in subdivision 3."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Liebling and Scott from the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1916, A bill for an act relating to child care; establishing program integrity requirements in the child care assistance program; directing the commissioner of children, youth, and families to establish an electronic record-keeping system for child care enrollment; requiring reports; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 13.461, subdivision 28; 142A.03, subdivision 2; 142E.17, subdivision 9; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 142D; 142E.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, delete section 1 and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 13.461, subdivision 28, is amended to read:

Subd. 28. ~~Child care assistance program programs.~~ **Child care assistance programs.** (a) Data collected, maintained, used, or disseminated by the welfare system pertaining to persons selected as legal nonlicensed child care providers by families receiving child care assistance are classified under section 142E.02, subdivision 6, paragraph (a). Child care assistance program payment data is classified under section 142E.02, subdivision 6, paragraph (b).

(b) Video footage of child care provider and early childhood program operations collected or maintained by a government entity is classified under sections 142D.251, subdivision 5, and 142E.161, subdivision 5."

Page 9, delete section 3 and insert:

"Sec. 3. [142D.251] INSPECTIONS AND VIDEO MONITORING FOR EARLY LEARNING SCHOLARSHIPS.

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the terms defined in this subdivision have the meanings given.

(b) "Facility" means the indoor and outdoor space in which child care is provided that is owned, leased, or operated by the program.

(c) "Video monitoring" means the ability for the commissioner to see recorded video of public and shared areas of the program's facility any time the program has children on the premises.

Subd. 2. General requirements. (a) The commissioner must conduct inspections and video monitoring of early childhood programs that receive funding under section 142D.25 in accordance with this section.

(b) The video monitoring system must:

(1) be turned on and recording any time the program has children on the premises;

(2) record and display the accurate date and time;

(3) have a display resolution of 720p or higher; and

(4) have a frame-per-second rate of 15 or higher.

Subd. 3. Inspections. (a) If a program receives \$1,000,000 or more under section 142D.25 in a calendar year, the commissioner may:

(1) conduct unannounced inspections of the program's facility in the year following the receipt of the funding; and

(2) review video footage collected pursuant to subdivision 4.

(b) Inspections required under this section must be in addition to any licensing inspections required under chapter 142B.

Subd. 4. Video monitoring. (a) A program that receives \$1,000,000 or more under section 142D.25 in a calendar year is subject to video monitoring by the commissioner for one year following the receipt of the funding.

(b) Within 90 days of being notified by the commissioner that a program is subject to video monitoring under this subdivision, a program is required to:

(1) install video cameras or other devices that capture or record video in public and shared areas of the program's facility and cover public entrances and exits to the facility and entrances and exits to areas where a parent or legal guardian signs a child in or out of the facility; and

(2) notify all parents and legal guardians who apply for placement or enroll a child in the program that the program is subject to video monitoring by the commissioner.

(c) The commissioner may review recordings or copies of a program's operation during certain times and dates. If the program fails to produce recordings or copies for any of the requested times and dates, the commissioner may use that failure as prima facie evidence that the program cared for zero children during the missing times and dates.

Subd. 5. **Government data practices.** (a) To the extent data are not classified under section 13.32, video footage collected or maintained by the commissioner under this section is classified as protected nonpublic data, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 13.

(b) Video footage collected, created, or maintained by an early childhood program that is a government entity, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 7a, is classified as private data on individuals, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 12, and is subject to the requirements under subdivision 6.

(c) If the requirements under section 13.32 conflict with the requirements under subdivision 6, the requirements of subdivision 6 prevail.

(d) Audit reports submitted to the commissioner under subdivision 7 are classified as public data not on individuals, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 14.

Subd. 6. **Retention, dissemination, and disposal of recordings; access to recordings.** (a) A program must retain video monitoring recordings required under this section for 60 calendar days after the date of the recording. Except as provided under paragraph (b), a program must dispose of video monitoring recordings required under this section after 60 calendar days.

(b) A program that receives notice from a law enforcement official of a suspected crime committed against a child at the facility must not dispose of any video monitoring recordings required under this section until the law enforcement investigation of the suspected crime is complete.

(c) A program must adhere to additional requirements issued by the commissioner regarding the retention and disposal of video monitoring recordings required under this section.

(d) A program must not sell, share, transmit, or disseminate a video monitoring recording required under this section to any person except as authorized by this section.

(e) A program must disseminate a video monitoring recording required under this section pursuant to a valid court order, search warrant, or subpoena in a civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding, including an investigation by the commissioner.

(f) A program must establish appropriate security safeguards for video monitoring recordings required under this section, including procedures to ensure that the recordings are only accessible to individuals whose work assignments reasonably require access to the recordings and are only accessed by those individuals for purposes described in the procedures. All queries and responses, and all actions in which the recordings are accessed, shared, or disseminated, must be recorded in a data audit trail. Data contained in the audit trail are subject to the same requirements as the underlying recording under this section.

Subd. 7. **Audits.** (a) A program that is not licensed under chapter 142B must arrange for an independent, biennial audit to determine whether the program's video monitoring complies with the requirements of this section, including but not limited to the requirements under subdivision 6. A report summarizing the results of each audit must be provided to the commissioner no later than 30 days following completion of the audit. The report must not contain a video monitoring recording or identifying information on children enrolled in the program.

(b) For a program licensed under chapter 142B, the commissioner must conduct, as part of the annual licensing inspection required under chapter 142B, an audit to determine whether the program's video monitoring complies with the requirements of this section, including but not limited to the requirements under subdivision 6.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective September 1, 2025. Initial biennial audits under subdivision 7, paragraph (a), are due by December 1, 2027."

Page 10, delete section 4 and insert:

"Sec. 4. **[142E.161] INSPECTIONS; VIDEO MONITORING.**

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the terms defined in this subdivision have the meanings given.

(b) "Facility" means the indoor and outdoor space in which child care is provided that is owned, leased, or operated by the provider.

(c) "Video monitoring" means the ability for the commissioner to see recorded video of public and shared areas of the provider's facility any time the provider has children on the premises.

Subd. 2. General requirements. (a) The commissioner must conduct inspections and video monitoring of providers that receive funding under this chapter in accordance with this section.

(b) The video monitoring system must:

(1) be turned on and recording any time the provider has children on the premises;

(2) record and display the accurate date and time;

(3) have a display resolution of 720p or higher; and

(4) have a frame-per-second rate of 15 or higher.

Subd. 3. Inspections. (a) If a provider receives \$1,000,000 or more under this chapter in a calendar year, the commissioner may:

(1) conduct unannounced inspections of the provider's facility in the year following the receipt of the funding; and

(2) review video footage collected pursuant to subdivision 4.

(b) Inspections required under this section must be in addition to any licensing inspections required under chapter 142B.

Subd. 4. Video monitoring. (a) A provider that receives \$1,000,000 or more under this chapter in a calendar year is subject to video monitoring by the commissioner for one year following the receipt of the funding.

(b) Within 90 days of being notified by the commissioner that a program is subject to video monitoring under this subdivision, a provider is required to:

(1) install video cameras or other devices that capture or record video in public and shared areas of the provider's facility and cover public entrances and exits to the facility and entrances and exits to areas where a parent or legal guardian signs a child in or out of the facility; and

(2) notify all parents and legal guardians who apply for placement or enroll a child in the program that the program is subject to video monitoring by the commissioner.

(c) The commissioner may review recordings or copies of a provider's operation during certain times and dates. If the provider fails to produce recordings or copies for any of the requested times and dates, the commissioner may use that failure as prima facie evidence that the provider cared for zero children during the missing times and dates.

Subd. 5. Government data practices. (a) To the extent data are not classified under section 13.32, video footage collected or maintained by the commissioner under this section is classified as protected nonpublic data, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 13.

(b) Video footage collected, created, or maintained by a provider that is a government entity, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 7a, is classified as private data on individuals, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 12, and is subject to the requirements under subdivision 6.

(c) If the requirements under section 13.32 conflict with the requirements under subdivision 6, the requirements of subdivision 6 prevail.

(d) Audit reports submitted to the commissioner under subdivision 7 are classified as public data not on individuals, as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 14.

Subd. 6. Retention, dissemination, and disposal of recordings; access to recordings. (a) A provider must retain video monitoring recordings required under this section for 60 calendar days after the date of the recording. Except as provided under paragraph (b), a provider must dispose of video monitoring recordings required under this section after 60 calendar days.

(b) A provider that receives notice from a law enforcement official of a suspected crime committed against a child at the facility must not dispose of any video monitoring recordings required under this section until the law enforcement investigation of the suspected crime is complete.

(c) A provider must adhere to additional requirements issued by the commissioner regarding the retention and disposal of video monitoring recordings required under this section.

(d) A provider must not sell, share, transmit, or disseminate a video monitoring recording required under this section to any person except as authorized by this section.

(e) A provider must disseminate a video monitoring recording required under this section pursuant to a valid court order, search warrant, or subpoena in a civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding, including an investigation by the commissioner.

(f) A provider must establish appropriate security safeguards for video monitoring recordings required under this section, including procedures to ensure that the recordings are only accessible to individuals whose work assignments reasonably require access to the recordings and are only accessed by those individuals for purposes described in the procedures. All queries and responses, and all actions in which the recordings are accessed, shared, or disseminated, must be recorded in a data audit trail. Data contained in the audit trail are subject to the same requirements as the underlying recording under this section.

Subd. 7. **Audits.** (a) A provider that is not licensed under chapter 142B must arrange for an independent, biennial audit to determine whether the provider's video monitoring complies with the requirements of this section, including but not limited to the requirements under subdivision 6. A report summarizing the results of each audit must be provided to the commissioner no later than 30 days following completion of the audit. The report must not contain a video monitoring recording or identifying information on children enrolled in the program.

(b) For a provider licensed under chapter 142B, the commissioner must conduct, as part of the annual licensing inspection required under chapter 142B, an audit to determine whether the provider's video monitoring complies with the requirements of this section, including but not limited to the requirements under subdivision 6.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective September 1, 2025. Initial biennial audits under subdivision 7, paragraph (a), are due by December 1, 2027."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Bennett and Jordan from the Committee on Education Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2067, A bill for an act relating to education; defining attendance; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 120A.22, subdivision 13.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 120A.22, subdivision 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 12. **Legitimate exemptions.** (a) A parent, guardian, or other person having control of a child may apply to a school district to have the child excused from attendance for the whole or any part of the time school is in session during any school year. Application may be made to ~~any member of the board, a truant officer, a~~ or the school official designated by the principal, or the superintendent. The school district may state in its school attendance policy that it may ask the student's parent or legal guardian to verify in writing the reason for the child's absence from school. A note from a physician or a licensed mental health professional stating that the child cannot attend school is a valid excuse. The board of the district in which the child resides may approve the application upon the following being demonstrated to the satisfaction of that board:

(1) that the child's physical or mental health is such as to prevent attendance at school or application to study for the period required, which includes:

(i) child illness, medical, dental, orthodontic, or counseling appointments, including appointments conducted through telehealth;

(ii) family emergencies;

(iii) the death or serious illness or funeral of an immediate family member;

(iv) active duty in any military branch of the United States;

(v) the child has a condition that requires ongoing treatment for a mental health diagnosis; or

(vi) other exemptions included in the district's school attendance policy;

(2) that the child has already completed state and district standards required for graduation from high school; or

(3) that it is the wish of the parent, guardian, or other person having control of the child that the child attend, for a period or periods not exceeding in the aggregate three hours in any week, instruction conducted by a Tribal spiritual or cultural advisor, or a school for religious instruction conducted and maintained by a church, or association of churches, or any Sunday school association incorporated under the laws of this state, or any auxiliary thereof. This instruction must be conducted and maintained in a place other than a public school building, and it must not, in whole or in part, be conducted and maintained at public expense. A child may be absent from school on days that the child attends upon instruction according to this clause.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision 6, paragraph (a), a parent may withdraw a child from an all-day, every day kindergarten program and put their child in a half-day program, if offered, or an alternate-day program without being truant. A school board must excuse a kindergarten child from a part of a school day at the request of the child's parent.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 120A.22, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Issuing and Reporting excuses attendance.** (a) A student is counted as in attendance on each day that a school employee is paid to supervise or provide services to the student.

(b) ~~The clerk or any authorized officer of the board~~ principal or the school official designated by the principal must issue and keep a record of such excuses, under such rules as the board may from time to time establish.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective July 1, 2025.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 120A.24, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Reports to the state or county.** (a) A superintendent must make an annual report to the commissioner of education by December 1 of the total number of nonpublic children reported as residing in the district. The report must include the following information:

(1) the number of children residing in the district attending nonpublic schools or receiving instruction from persons or institutions other than a public school;

(2) the number of children in clause (1) who are in compliance with section 120A.22 and this section; and

(3) the number of children in clause (1) who the superintendent has determined are not in compliance with section 120A.22 and this section.

(b) No later than 15 school days after the beginning of each academic term, a school principal must report to the superintendent a list of the names and last known addresses of all students who were enrolled in the school for the previous term, are not enrolled in the school for the current term, and were otherwise eligible for enrollment, unless the school has been notified that the student has enrolled in another school. The superintendent must immediately make the list received from the principal available to an authorized representative of a county agency whose statutory purpose is to enroll students in school.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 120B.305, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Reporting requirements.** (a) Reporting of state assessment results must:

(1) provide timely, useful, and understandable information on the performance of individual students, schools, school districts, and the state;

(2) include a growth indicator of student achievement; and

(3) determine whether students have met the state's academic standards.

(b) The commissioner must ensure that for annual computer-adaptive assessments:

(1) individual student performance data and achievement reports are available within three school days of when students take an assessment except in a year when an assessment reflects new performance standards;

(2) growth information is available for each student from the student's first assessment to each proximate assessment using a constant measurement scale;

(3) parents, teachers, and school administrators are able to use elementary and middle school student performance data to project students' secondary and postsecondary achievement; and

(4) useful diagnostic information about areas of students' academic strengths and weaknesses is available to teachers and school administrators for improving student instruction and indicating the specific skills and concepts that should be introduced and developed for students at given performance levels, organized by strands within subject areas, and aligned to state academic standards.

(c) The commissioner, in consultation with the chancellor of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, must establish empirically derived benchmarks on the high school tests that reveal a trajectory toward career and college readiness consistent with section 136F.302, subdivision 1a. The commissioner must disseminate to the public the computer-adaptive assessments and high school test results upon receiving those results.

(d) A school, school district, or charter school may provide a student's parent access to the student's individual student performance data and achievement report that is made available under paragraph (b), clause (1), when the performance data and report is available to the school, school district, or charter school.

(e) An individual student report of state assessment results must include the number and percent of days the student was absent from school during the previous school year.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective July 1, 2025.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 126C.05, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. **Average daily membership.** (a) Membership for pupils in grades kindergarten through 12 and for prekindergarten pupils with disabilities shall mean the number of pupils on the current roll of the school, counted from the date of entry until withdrawal. The date of withdrawal shall mean the day the pupil permanently leaves the school or the date it is officially known that the pupil has left or has been legally excused. However, a pupil, regardless of age, who has been absent from school for 15 consecutive school days during the regular school year or for five consecutive school days during summer school or intersession classes of flexible school year programs without receiving instruction in the home or hospital shall be dropped from the roll and classified as withdrawn. Nothing in this section shall be construed as waiving the compulsory attendance provisions cited in section 120A.22. Average daily membership equals the sum for all pupils of the number of days of the school year each pupil is enrolled in the

district's schools divided by the number of days the schools are in session or are providing e-learning days due to inclement weather. Days of summer school or intersession classes of flexible school year programs are only included in the computation of membership for pupils with a disability not appropriately served primarily in the regular classroom. A student must not be counted as more than 1.2 pupils in average daily membership under this section and section 126C.10, subdivision 2a, paragraph (c). When the initial total average daily membership exceeds 1.2 for a pupil enrolled in more than one school district during the fiscal year, each district's average daily membership must be reduced proportionately.

(b) A student must not be counted as more than one pupil in average daily membership except for purposes of section 126C.10, subdivision 2a.

(c) A school district must notify the local welfare agency of any student dropped from the school's roll under paragraph (a) for unexcused absences exceeding 15 consecutive school days. The notice to the local welfare agency must include the student's most recent contact information on file with the school. The school must also send an email, letter, or otherwise contact the student's family to encourage the student to reenroll in the school's programming.

(d) After receiving notification under paragraph (c), the local welfare agency must inform the school if the agency is unable to contact the student or student's family. If the local welfare agency is unable to contact the student or student's family, the district must notify the Department of Education that the student has been dropped from the school's roll, and that the local welfare agency is unable to contact the student or student's family. The notice to the department must include the student's most recent contact information on file with the school.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective July 1, 2025."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to education; modifying student attendance provisions; modifying reporting requirements; modifying notification procedures for student absences and reenrollment; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 120A.22, subdivisions 12, 13; 120A.24, subdivision 4; 120B.305, subdivision 2; 126C.05, subdivision 8."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Her and O'Driscoll from the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2233, A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; adopting the Uniform Special Deposits Act; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 47.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

The report was adopted.

Freiberg and Quam from the Committee on Elections Finance and Government Operations to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2361, A bill for an act relating to elections; requiring notice at a closed polling place until the occurrence of a presidential election or redistricting; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 204B.16, subdivision 1a.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, line 20, after "each" insert "special." and after "primary" insert a comma

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Backer and Bierman from the Committee on Health Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2371, A bill for an act relating to health; requiring informed consent for sensitive examinations performed on an anesthetized or unconscious patient; providing a criminal penalty; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 144.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

The report was adopted.

Freiberg and Quam from the Committee on Elections Finance and Government Operations to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2418, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; requiring local governments to establish replacement accounts to maintain and replace capital projects that receive state funding; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16A.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **[16A.865] CAPITAL PROJECT PLANS.**

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings given.

(b) "Capital project" means improvements or betterments of a capital nature subject to section 16A.642, 16A.695, or 16A.86.

(c) "Grantee" means a grantee that receives a direct appropriation or grant from an appropriation of state money for a capital project on or after July 1, 2025. Grantee does not include a state agency or state official.

(d) "Preservation" means improvements and betterments of a capital nature consistent with those described in section 16B.307, subdivision 1, paragraph (d).

Subd. 2. **Capital project plan required.** A grantee must establish a capital project plan for major rehabilitation, expansion, or preservation of all capital projects, including safety and security, maintenance and utility costs, availability of repair parts and materials, sustainability, and any other criteria the grantee deems relevant.

Subd. 3. **Certification of plan.** (a) A grantee must certify to the commissioner that the grantee has established or updated a capital project plan, and is in compliance with the capital project plan, in accordance with this section. The certification must be made in the time, form, and manner prescribed by the commissioner.

(b) The commissioner may require a grantee to provide additional documentation or information about a capital project plan to verify a certification made under this subdivision.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective for capital projects funded through state capital project grant agreements entered into on or after July 1, 2025."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, delete "replacement" and insert "capital project plans;"

Page 1, delete line 3

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

The report was adopted.

Bennett and Jordan from the Committee on Education Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2483, A bill for an act relating to education; modifying Board of School Administrators reporting requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 122A.14, subdivision 10.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Freiberg and Quam from the Committee on Elections Finance and Government Operations to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2595, A bill for an act relating to elections; modifying certain election judge provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 204C.09, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

Her and O'Driscoll from the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2601, A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; modifying the maximum interest rate for certain loans and contracts for deed; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 47.20, subdivision 4a; 334.01, subdivision 2.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 3, after line 8, insert:

"Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.09, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. **Other violations.** If the commissioner believes a person has committed a violation of section 60D.17 that prevents the full understanding of the enterprise risk to the insurer by affiliates or by the insurance holding company system, the violation may serve as an independent basis for disapproving dividends or distributions and for placing the insurer under an order of supervision under chapter 60B.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Control.** The term "control," including the terms "controlling," "controlled by," and "under common control with," means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract other than a commercial contract for goods or nonmanagement services, or otherwise, unless the power is the result of an official position with, ~~or corporate office held by, or court appointment of,~~ the person. Control is presumed to exist if any person, directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with the power to vote, or holds proxies representing, ten percent or more of the voting securities of any other person. This presumption may be rebutted by a showing made in the manner provided by section 60D.19, subdivision 11, that control does not exist in fact. The commissioner may determine, after furnishing all persons in interest notice and opportunity to be heard and making specific findings of fact to support ~~such~~ the determination, that control exists in fact, notwithstanding the absence of a presumption to that effect.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 4c. **Group capital calculation instructions.** "Group capital calculation instructions" means the group capital calculation instructions adopted by the NAIC and as amended by the NAIC from time to time in accordance with procedures adopted by the NAIC.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6b. **NAIC.** "NAIC" means the National Association of Insurance Commissioners.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6c. **NAIC liquidity stress test framework.** "NAIC liquidity stress test framework" means a NAIC publication which includes a history of the NAIC's development of regulatory liquidity stress testing, the scope criteria applicable for a specific data year, and the liquidity stress test instructions and reporting templates for a specific data year, scope criteria, instructions, and reporting template being adopted by the NAIC, and as amended by the NAIC from time to time in accordance with the procedures adopted by the NAIC.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Person.** A "person" is an individual, a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any similar entity or any combination of the foregoing acting in concert, but does not include any joint venture partnership exclusively engaged in owning, managing, leasing, or developing real or tangible personal property.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.15, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7a. Scope criteria. "Scope criteria," as detailed in the NAIC liquidity stress test framework, means the designated exposure bases along with minimum magnitudes of the designated exposure bases for the specified data year that are used to establish a preliminary list of insurers considered scoped into the NAIC liquidity stress test framework for that data year.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.16, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. Additional investment authority. In addition to investments in common stock, preferred stock, debt obligations, and other securities otherwise permitted under this chapter, a domestic insurer may also:

(a) Invest, in common stock, preferred stock, debt obligations, and other securities of one or more subsidiaries, amounts that do not exceed the lesser of ten percent of the insurer's assets or 50 percent of the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders, provided that after the investments, the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders ~~will be~~ is reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its financial needs. In calculating the amount of these investments, investments in domestic or foreign insurance subsidiaries and health maintenance organizations must be excluded, and there must be included:

(1) total net money or other consideration expended and obligations assumed in the acquisition or formation of a subsidiary, including all organizational expenses and contributions to capital and surplus of the subsidiary whether or not represented by the purchase of capital stock or issuance of other securities; and

(2) all amounts expended in acquiring additional common stock, preferred stock, debt obligations, and other securities; and all contributions to the capital or surplus; of a subsidiary subsequent to its acquisition or formation.

(b) Invest any amount in common stock, preferred stock, debt obligations, and other securities of one or more subsidiaries engaged or organized to engage exclusively in the ownership and management of assets authorized as investments for the insurer provided that the subsidiary agrees to limit its investments in any asset so that the investments ~~will do~~ not cause the amount of the total investment of the insurer to exceed any of the investment limitations specified in paragraph (a) or other statutes applicable to the insurer. For the purpose of this paragraph, "the total investment of the insurer" includes:

(1) any direct investment by the insurer in an asset; and

(2) the insurer's proportionate share of any investment in an asset by any subsidiary of the insurer, which must be calculated by multiplying the amount of the subsidiary's investment by the percentage of the ownership of the subsidiary.

(c) With the approval of the commissioner, invest any greater amount in common stock, preferred stock, debt obligations, or other securities of one or more subsidiaries, if after the investment the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders ~~will be~~ is reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its financial needs.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.17, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. Filing requirements. (a) No person other than the issuer shall: (1) make a tender offer for or a request or invitation for tenders of, or enter into any agreement to exchange securities ~~or for~~, seek to acquire, or acquire, in the open market or otherwise, any voting security of a domestic insurer if, after the consummation thereof, the person would, directly or indirectly, or by conversion or by exercise of any right to acquire, be in control of the insurer; or (2) enter into an agreement to merge with or otherwise to acquire control of a domestic insurer or any

person controlling a domestic insurer unless, at the time the offer, request, or invitation is made or the agreement is entered into, or before the acquisition of the securities if no offer or agreement is involved, the person has filed with the commissioner and has sent to the insurer, a statement containing the information required by this section and the offer, request, invitation, agreement, or acquisition has been approved by the commissioner in the manner prescribed in this section.

(b) For purposes of this section, a controlling person of a domestic insurer seeking to divest its controlling interest in the domestic insurer, in any manner, shall file with the commissioner, with a copy to the insurer, confidential notice of its proposed divestiture at least 30 days before the cessation of control. The commissioner shall determine those instances in which the party or parties seeking to divest or to acquire a controlling interest in an insurer will be required to file for and obtain approval of the transaction. The information must remain confidential until the conclusion of the transaction unless the commissioner, in the commissioner's discretion, determines that confidential treatment interferes with the enforcement of this section. This paragraph does not apply if the statement referred to in paragraph (a) is otherwise filed.

(c) With respect to a transaction subject to this section, the acquiring person must also file a preacquisition notification with the commissioner, which must contain the information set forth in section 60D.18, subdivision 3, paragraph (b). A failure to file the notification may be subject to penalties specified in section 60D.18, subdivision 5.

(d) For purposes of this section, a domestic insurer includes a person controlling a domestic insurer unless the person, as determined by the commissioner, is either directly or through its affiliates primarily engaged in business other than the business of insurance. For the purposes of this section, "person" does not include any securities broker holding, in the usual and customary ~~brokers~~ broker's function, less than 20 percent of the voting securities of an insurance company or of any person that controls an insurance company.

~~(e) The statement filed with the commissioner pursuant to subdivisions 1 and 2 must remain confidential until the transaction is approved by the commissioner, except that all attachments filed with the statement remain confidential after the approval unless the commissioner, in the commissioner's discretion, determines that confidential treatment of any of this information will interfere with enforcement of this section.~~

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.18, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Preacquisition notification; waiting period.** (a) An acquisition covered by subdivision 2 may be subject to an order pursuant to subdivision 4 5 unless the acquiring person files a preacquisition notification and the waiting period has expired. The acquired person may file a preacquisition notification. The commissioner shall give confidential treatment to information submitted under this section in the same manner as provided in section 60D.22.

(b) The preacquisition notification must be in the form and contain the information as prescribed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners relating to those markets that, under subdivision 2, paragraph (b), clause ~~(5)~~ (4), cause the acquisition not to be exempted from the provisions of this section. The commissioner may require ~~the~~ additional material and information as the commissioner deems necessary to determine whether the proposed acquisition, if consummated, would violate the competitive standard of subdivision 4. The required information may include an opinion of an economist as to the competitive impact of the acquisition in this state accompanied by a summary of the education and experience of the person indicating that person's ability to render an informed opinion.

(c) The waiting period required begins on the date of receipt of the commissioner of a preacquisition notification and ends on the earlier of the 30th day after the date of its receipt, or termination of the waiting period by the commissioner. Before the end of the waiting period, the commissioner on a onetime basis may require the submission of additional needed information relevant to the proposed acquisition, in which event the waiting period shall end on the earlier of the 30th day after receipt of the additional information by the commissioner or termination of the waiting period by the commissioner.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.19, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Materiality.** No information need be disclosed on the registration statement filed pursuant to subdivision 2 if the information is not material for the purposes of this section. Unless the commissioner by rule or order provides otherwise; sales, purchases, exchanges, loans or extensions of credit, investments, or guarantees involving one-half of one percent or less of an insurer's admitted assets as of the 31st day of December next preceding shall not be deemed material for purposes of this section. The definition of materiality provided in this subdivision does not apply for purposes of the group capital calculation or the NAIC liquidity stress test framework.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.19, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 11b. **Group capital calculation.** (a) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the ultimate controlling person of every insurer subject to registration must concurrently file with the registration an annual group capital calculation as directed by the lead state insurance commissioner. The report must be completed in accordance with the NAIC group capital calculation instructions, which may permit the lead state insurance commissioner to allow a controlling person that is not the ultimate controlling person to file the group capital calculation. The report must be filed with the lead state insurance commissioner of the insurance holding company system, as determined by the commissioner in accordance with the procedures within the Financial Analysis Handbook adopted by the NAIC. The following insurance holding company systems are exempt from filing the group capital calculation:

(1) an insurance holding company system that (i) has only one insurer within the insurance holding company system's holding company structure, (ii) only writes business and is only licensed in the insurance holding company system's domestic state, and (iii) assumes no business from any other insurer;

(2) an insurance holding company system that is required to perform a group capital calculation specified by the United States Federal Reserve Board. The lead state insurance commissioner must request the calculation from the Federal Reserve Board under the terms of information sharing agreements in effect. If the Federal Reserve Board is unable to share the calculation with the lead state insurance commissioner, the insurance holding company system is not exempt from the group capital calculation filing;

(3) an insurance holding company system whose non-United States groupwide supervisor is located within a reciprocal jurisdiction as described in section 60A.092, subdivision 10b, that recognizes the United States state regulatory approach to group supervision and group capital; or

(4) an insurance holding company system:

(i) that provides information to the lead state insurance commissioner that meets the requirements for accreditation under the NAIC financial standards and accreditation program, either directly or indirectly through the groupwide supervisor, that has determined the information is satisfactory to allow the lead state insurance commissioner to comply with the NAIC group supervision approach, as detailed in the NAIC Financial Analysis Handbook; and

(ii) whose non-United States groupwide supervisor that is not in a reciprocal jurisdiction recognizes and accepts, as specified by the commissioner in an administrative rule, the group capital calculation as the worldwide group capital assessment for United States insurance groups that operate in that jurisdiction.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), clauses (3) and (4), a lead state insurance commissioner must require the group capital calculation for the United States operations of any non-United States based insurance holding company system where, after any necessary consultation with other supervisors or officials, requiring the group capital calculation is deemed appropriate by the lead state insurance commissioner for prudential oversight and solvency monitoring purposes or for ensuring the competitiveness of the insurance marketplace.

(c) Notwithstanding the exemptions from filing the group capital calculation under paragraph (a), the lead state insurance commissioner may exempt the ultimate controlling person from filing the annual group capital calculation or accept a limited group capital filing or report in accordance with criteria specified by the commissioner in an administrative rule.

(d) If the lead state insurance commissioner determines that an insurance holding company system no longer meets one or more of the requirements for an exemption from filing the group capital calculation under this subdivision, the insurance holding company system must file the group capital calculation at the next annual filing date unless given an extension by the lead state insurance commissioner based on reasonable grounds shown.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.19, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 11c. **Liquidity stress test.** (a) The ultimate controlling person of every insurer subject to registration and also scoped into the NAIC liquidity stress test framework must file the results of a specific year's liquidity stress test. The filing must be made to the lead state insurance commissioner of the insurance holding company system, as determined by the procedures within the Financial Analysis Handbook adopted by the NAIC.

(b) The NAIC liquidity stress test framework includes scope criteria applicable to a specific data year. The scope criteria must be reviewed at least annually by the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force or the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force's successor. Any change made to the NAIC liquidity stress test framework or to the data year for which the scope criteria must be measured is effective January 1 of the year following the calendar year in which the change is adopted. An insurer meeting at least one threshold of the scope criteria is scoped into the NAIC liquidity stress test framework for the specified data year unless the lead state insurance commissioner, in consultation with the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force or the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force's successor, determines the insurer should not be scoped into the framework for that data year. An insurer that does not trigger at least one threshold of the scope criteria is scoped out of the NAIC liquidity stress test framework for the specified data year unless the lead state insurance commissioner, in consultation with the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force or the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force's successor, determines the insurer should be scoped into the framework for the specified data year.

(c) The commissioner and other state insurance commissioners must avoid scoping insurers in and out of the NAIC liquidity stress test framework on a frequent basis. The lead state insurance commissioner, in consultation with the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force or the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force's successor, must assess irregular scope status as part of an insurer's determination.

(d) The performance of and filing of the results from a specific year's liquidity stress test must comply with (1) the NAIC liquidity stress test framework's instructions and reporting templates for the specific year, and (2) any lead state insurance commissioner determinations, in consultation with the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force or the NAIC Financial Stability Task Force's successor, provided within the framework.

Sec. 15. **[60D.195] GROUP CAPITAL CALCULATION.**

Subdivision 1. **Annual group capital calculation; exemption permitted.** The lead state insurance commissioner may exempt the ultimate controlling person from filing the annual group capital calculation if the lead state insurance commissioner makes a determination that the insurance holding company system meets the following criteria:

(1) has annual direct written and unaffiliated assumed premium, including international direct and assumed premium but excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and Federal Flood Program, of less than \$1,000,000,000;

(2) has no insurers within the insurance holding company's structure that are domiciled outside of the United States or a United States territory;

(3) has no banking, depository, or other financial entity that is subject to an identified regulatory capital framework within the insurance holding company's structure;

(4) attests that no material changes in the transactions between insurers and noninsurers in the group have occurred since the last annual group capital filing; and

(5) the noninsurers within the holding company system do not pose a material financial risk to the insurer's ability to honor policyholder obligations.

Subd. 2. Limited group capital filing. The lead state insurance commissioner may accept a limited group capital filing in lieu of the group capital calculation if:

(1) the insurance holding company system has annual direct written and unaffiliated assumed premium, including international direct and assumed premium but excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and Federal Flood Program, of less than \$1,000,000,000; and

(2) the insurance holding company system:

(i) has no insurers within the insurance holding company's structure that are domiciled outside of the United States or a United States territory;

(ii) does not include a banking, depository, or other financial entity that is subject to an identified regulatory capital framework; and

(iii) attests that no material changes in transactions between insurers and noninsurers in the group have occurred and the noninsurers within the holding company system do not pose a material financial risk to the insurer's ability to honor policyholder obligations.

Subd. 3. Previous exemption; required filing. For an insurance holding company that has previously met an exemption with respect to the group capital calculation under subdivision 1 or 2, the lead state insurance commissioner may at any time require the ultimate controlling person to file an annual group capital calculation, completed in accordance with the NAIC group capital calculation instructions, if:

(1) an insurer within the insurance holding company system is in a risk-based capital action level event under section 60A.62 or a similar standard for a non-United States insurer;

(2) an insurer within the insurance holding company system meets one or more of the standards of an insurer deemed to be in hazardous financial condition, as defined under section 60E.02, subdivision 5; or

(3) an insurer within the insurance holding company system otherwise exhibits qualities of a troubled insurer, as determined by the lead state insurance commissioner based on unique circumstances, including but not limited to the type and volume of business written, ownership and organizational structure, federal agency requests, and international supervisor requests.

Subd. 4. Non-United States jurisdictions; recognition and acceptance. A non-United States jurisdiction is deemed to recognize and accept the group capital calculation if the non-United States jurisdiction:

(1) with respect to section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, paragraph (a), clause (4):

(i) recognizes the United States state regulatory approach to group supervision and group capital by providing confirmation by a competent regulatory authority in the non-United States jurisdiction that insurers and insurance groups whose lead state is accredited by the NAIC under the NAIC accreditation program: (A) are subject only to worldwide prudential insurance group supervision, including worldwide group governance, solvency and capital, and reporting, as applicable, by the lead state; and (B) are not subject to group supervision, including worldwide group governance, solvency and capital, and reporting, at the level of the worldwide parent undertaking of the insurance or reinsurance group by the non-United States jurisdiction; or

(ii) if no United States insurance group operates in the non-United States jurisdiction, indicates formally in writing to the lead state with a copy to the International Association of Insurance Supervisors that the group capital calculation is an acceptable international capital standard. The formal indication under this item serves as the documentation otherwise required under item (i); and

(2) provides confirmation by a competent regulatory authority in the non-United States jurisdiction that information regarding an insurer and the insurer's parent, subsidiary, or affiliated entities, if applicable, must be provided to the lead state insurance commissioner in accordance with a memorandum of understanding or similar document between the commissioner and the non-United States jurisdiction, including but not limited to the International Association of Insurance Supervisors Multilateral Memorandum of Understanding or other multilateral memoranda of understanding coordinated by the NAIC. The commissioner must determine, in consultation with the NAIC committee process, if the information sharing agreement requirements are effective.

Subd. 5. Non-United States jurisdiction; publication. (a) A list of non-United States jurisdictions that recognize and accept the group capital calculation under section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, paragraph (a), clause (4), must be published through the NAIC committee process to assist the lead state insurance commissioner determine what insurers must file an annual group capital calculation. The list must clarify the situations in which a jurisdiction is exempt from filing under section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, paragraph (a), clause (4). To assist with a determination under section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, paragraph (b), the list must also identify whether a jurisdiction that is exempt under section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, paragraph (a), clause (3) or (4), requires a group capital filing for any United States insurance group's operations in the non-United States jurisdiction.

(b) For a non-United States jurisdiction where no United States insurance group operates, the confirmation provided to comply with subdivision 4, clause (1), item (ii), serves as support for a recommendation to be published that the non-United States jurisdiction is a jurisdiction that recognizes and accepts the group capital calculation pursuant to the NAIC committee process.

(c) If the lead state insurance commissioner makes a determination pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, that differs from the NAIC list, the lead state insurance commissioner must provide thoroughly documented justification to the NAIC and other states.

(d) Upon a determination by the lead state insurance commissioner that a non-United States jurisdiction no longer meets one or more of the requirements to recognize and accept the group capital calculation, the lead state insurance commissioner may provide a recommendation to the NAIC that the non-United States jurisdiction be removed from the list of jurisdictions that recognize and accept the group capital calculation.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.20, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Transactions within an insurance holding company system.** (a) Transactions within an insurance holding company system to which an insurer subject to registration is a party are subject to the following standards:

- (1) the terms shall be fair and reasonable;
- (2) agreements for cost-sharing services and management shall include the provisions required by rule issued by the commissioner;
- (3) charges or fees for services performed shall be reasonable;
- (4) expenses incurred and payment received shall be allocated to the insurer in conformity with customary insurance accounting practices consistently applied;
- (5) the books, accounts, and records of each party to all such transactions shall be so maintained as to clearly and accurately disclose the nature and details of the transactions including this accounting information as is necessary to support the reasonableness of the charges or fees to the respective parties; ~~and~~
- (6) the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders following any dividends or distributions to shareholder affiliates shall be reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its financial needs;
- (7) if the commissioner determines an insurer subject to this chapter is in a hazardous financial condition, as defined under section 60E.02, subdivision 5, or a condition that would be grounds for supervision, conservation, or a delinquency proceeding, the commissioner may require the insurer to secure and maintain either a deposit, held by the commissioner, or a bond, as determined by the insurer at the insurer's discretion, to protect the insurer for the duration of the contract, agreement, or the existence of the condition for which the commissioner required the deposit or bond. When determining whether a deposit or bond is required, the commissioner must consider whether concerns exist with respect to the affiliated person's ability to fulfill the contract or agreement if the insurer entered into liquidation. Once the insurer is deemed to be in a hazardous financial condition or a condition that would be grounds for supervision, conservation, or a delinquency proceeding, and a deposit or bond is necessary, the commissioner may determine the amount of the deposit or bond, not to exceed the value of the contract or agreement in any one year, and whether the deposit or bond is required for a single contract, multiple contracts, or a contract only with a specific person or persons;
- (8) all of an insurer's records and data held by an affiliate are and remain the property of the insurer, are subject to control of the insurer, are identifiable, and are segregated or readily capable of segregation, at no additional cost to the insurer, from all other persons' records and data. For purposes of this clause, records and data include all records and data that are otherwise the property of the insurer in whatever form maintained, including but not limited to claims and claim files, policyholder lists, application files, litigation files, premium records, rate books, underwriting manuals, personnel records, financial records, or similar records within the affiliate's possession, custody, or control. At the request of the insurer, the affiliate must provide that the receiver may (i) obtain a complete set of all records of any type that pertain to the insurer's business, (ii) obtain access to the operating systems on which the data are maintained, (iii) obtain the software that runs the operating systems either through assumption of licensing agreements or otherwise, and (iv) restrict the use of the data by the affiliate if the affiliate is not operating the insurer's business. The affiliate must provide a waiver of any landlord lien or other encumbrance to provide the insurer access to all records and data in the event the affiliate defaults under a lease or other agreement; and
- (9) premiums or other funds belonging to the insurer that are collected or held by an affiliate are the exclusive property of the insurer and are subject to the control of the insurer. Any right of offset in the event an insurer is placed into receivership is subject to chapter 576.

(b) The following transactions involving a domestic insurer and any person in its insurance holding company system, including amendments or modifications of affiliate agreements previously filed pursuant to this section, which are subject to any materiality standards contained in clauses (1) to (7), may not be entered into unless the insurer has notified the commissioner in writing of its intention to enter into the transaction at least 30 days prior thereto, or a shorter period the commissioner permits, and the commissioner has not disapproved it within this period. The notice for amendments or modifications must include the reasons for the change and the financial impact on the domestic insurer. Informal notice must be reported, within 30 days after a termination of a previously filed agreement, to the commissioner for determination of the type of filing required, if any:

(1) sales, purchases, exchanges, loans or extensions of credit, guarantees, or investments provided the transactions are equal to or exceed: (i) with respect to nonlife insurers, the lesser of three percent of the insurer's admitted assets, or 25 percent of surplus as regards policyholders; (ii) with respect to life insurers, three percent of the insurer's admitted assets; each as of the 31st day of December next preceding;

(2) loans or extensions of credit to any person who is not an affiliate, where the insurer makes the loans or extensions of credit with the agreement or understanding that the proceeds of the transactions, in whole or in substantial part, are to be used to make loans or extensions of credit to, to purchase assets of, or to make investments in, any affiliate of the insurer making such loans or extensions of credit provided the transactions are equal to or exceed: (i) with respect to nonlife insurers, the lesser of three percent of the insurer's admitted assets or 25 percent of surplus as regards policyholders; (ii) with respect to life insurers, three percent of the insurer's admitted assets; each as of the 31st day of December next preceding;

(3) reinsurance agreements or modifications to those agreements, including: (i) all reinsurance pooling agreements; and (ii) agreements in which the reinsurance premium or a change in the insurer's liabilities, or the projected reinsurance premium or a change in the insurer's liabilities in any of the next three years, equals or exceeds five percent of the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders, as of the 31st day of December next preceding, including those agreements which may require as consideration the transfer of assets from an insurer to a nonaffiliate, if an agreement or understanding exists between the insurer and nonaffiliate that any portion of ~~such~~ the assets will be transferred to one or more affiliates of the insurer;

(4) all management agreements, service contracts, tax allocation agreements, guarantees, and all cost-sharing arrangements;

(5) guarantees when made by a domestic insurer; provided, however, that a guarantee which is quantifiable as to amount is not subject to the notice requirements of this paragraph unless it exceeds the lesser of one-half of one percent of the insurer's admitted assets or ten percent of surplus as regards policyholders as of the 31st day of December next preceding. Further, all guarantees which are not quantifiable as to amount are subject to the notice requirements of this paragraph;

(6) direct or indirect acquisitions or investments in a person that controls the insurer or in an affiliate of the insurer in an amount which, together with its present holdings in the investments, exceeds 2-1/2 percent of the insurer's surplus to policyholders. Direct or indirect acquisitions or investments in subsidiaries acquired pursuant to section 60D.16, as otherwise authorized under this chapter, or in nonsubsidiary insurance affiliates that are subject to the provisions of sections 60D.15 to 60D.29, are exempt from this requirement; and

(7) any material transactions, specified by regulation, which the commissioner determines may adversely affect the interests of the insurer's policyholders.

Nothing contained in this section authorizes or permits any transactions that, in the case of an insurer not a member of the same insurance holding company system, would be otherwise contrary to law.

(c) A domestic insurer may not enter into transactions which are part of a plan or series of like transactions with persons within the insurance holding company system if the purpose of those separate transactions is to avoid the statutory threshold amount and thus avoid the review that would occur otherwise. If the commissioner determines that the separate transactions were entered into over any 12-month period for the purpose, the commissioner may exercise the authority under section 60D.25.

(d) The commissioner, in reviewing transactions pursuant to paragraph (b), shall consider whether the transactions comply with the standards set forth in paragraph (a), and whether they may adversely affect the interests of policyholders.

(e) The commissioner shall be notified within 30 days of any investment of the domestic insurer in any one corporation if the total investment in the corporation by the insurance holding company system exceeds ten percent of the corporation's voting securities.

(f) An affiliate that is party to an agreement or contract with a domestic insurer that is subject to paragraph (b), clause (4), is subject to the jurisdiction of any supervision, seizure, conservatorship, or receivership proceedings against the insurer and to the authority of a supervisor, conservator, rehabilitator, or liquidator for the insurer appointed pursuant to chapters 60B and 576 for the purpose of interpreting, enforcing, and overseeing the affiliate's obligations under the agreement or contract to perform services for the insurer that are: (1) an integral part of the insurer's operations, including but not limited to management, administrative, accounting, data processing, marketing, underwriting, claims handling, investment, or any other similar functions; or (2) essential to the insurer's ability to fulfill the insurer's obligations under insurance policies. The commissioner may require that an agreement or contract pursuant to paragraph (b), clause (4), to provide the services described in clauses (1) and (2) must specify that the affiliate consents to the jurisdiction as provided under this paragraph.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.217, is amended to read:

60D.217 GROUPWIDE SUPERVISION OF INTERNATIONALLY ACTIVE INSURANCE GROUPS.

(a) The commissioner is authorized to act as the groupwide supervisor for any internationally active insurance group in accordance with the provisions of this section. However, the commissioner may otherwise acknowledge another regulatory official as the groupwide supervisor where the internationally active insurance group:

(1) does not have substantial insurance operations in the United States;

(2) has substantial insurance operations in the United States, but not in this state; or

(3) has substantial insurance operations in the United States and this state, but the commissioner has determined pursuant to the factors set forth in ~~subsections~~ paragraphs (b) and (f) that the other regulatory official is the appropriate groupwide supervisor.

An insurance holding company system that does not otherwise qualify as an internationally active insurance group may request that the commissioner make a determination or acknowledgment as to a groupwide supervisor pursuant to this section.

(b) In cooperation with other state, federal, and international regulatory agencies, the commissioner ~~will~~ must identify a single groupwide supervisor for an internationally active insurance group. The commissioner may determine that the commissioner is the appropriate groupwide supervisor for an internationally active insurance group that conducts substantial insurance operations concentrated in this state. However, the commissioner may acknowledge that a regulatory official from another jurisdiction is the appropriate groupwide supervisor for the internationally active insurance group. The commissioner shall consider the following factors when making a determination or acknowledgment under this ~~subsection~~ paragraph:

(1) the place of domicile of the insurers within the internationally active insurance group that hold the largest share of the group's written premiums, assets, or liabilities;

(2) the place of domicile of the top-tiered ~~insurer(s)~~ insurer or insurers in the insurance holding company system of the internationally active insurance group;

(3) the location of the executive offices or largest operational offices of the internationally active insurance group;

(4) whether another regulatory official is acting or is seeking to act as the groupwide supervisor under a regulatory system that the commissioner determines to be:

(i) substantially similar to the system of regulation provided under the laws of this state; or

(ii) otherwise sufficient in terms of providing for groupwide supervision, enterprise risk analysis, and cooperation with other regulatory officials; and

(5) whether another regulatory official acting or seeking to act as the groupwide supervisor provides the commissioner with reasonably reciprocal recognition and cooperation.

However, a commissioner identified under this section as the groupwide supervisor may determine that it is appropriate to acknowledge another supervisor to serve as the groupwide supervisor. The acknowledgment of the groupwide supervisor shall be made after consideration of the factors listed in clauses (1) to (5), and shall be made in cooperation with and subject to the acknowledgment of other regulatory officials involved with supervision of members of the internationally active insurance group, and in consultation with the internationally active insurance group.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, when another regulatory official is acting as the groupwide supervisor of an internationally active insurance group, the commissioner shall acknowledge that regulatory official as the groupwide supervisor. However, in the event of a material change in the internationally active insurance group that results in:

(1) the internationally active insurance group's insurers domiciled in this state holding the largest share of the group's premiums, assets, or liabilities; or

(2) this state being the place of domicile of the top-tiered ~~insurer(s)~~ insurer or insurers in the insurance holding company system of the internationally active insurance group,

the commissioner shall make a determination or acknowledgment as to the appropriate groupwide supervisor for such an internationally active insurance group pursuant to ~~subsection~~ paragraph (b).

(d) Pursuant to section 60D.21, the commissioner is authorized to collect from any insurer registered pursuant to section 60D.19 all information necessary to determine whether the commissioner may act as the groupwide supervisor of an internationally active insurance group or if the commissioner may acknowledge another regulatory official to act as the groupwide supervisor. Prior to issuing a determination that an internationally active insurance group is subject to groupwide supervision by the commissioner, the commissioner shall notify the insurer registered pursuant to section 60D.19 and the ultimate controlling person within the internationally active insurance group. The internationally active insurance group shall have not less than 30 days to provide the commissioner with additional information pertinent to the pending determination. The commissioner shall publish in the State Register and on the department's website the identity of internationally active insurance groups that the commissioner has determined are subject to groupwide supervision by the commissioner.

(e) If the commissioner is the groupwide supervisor for an internationally active insurance group, the commissioner is authorized to engage in any of the following groupwide supervision activities:

(1) assess the enterprise risks within the internationally active insurance group to ensure that:

(i) the material financial condition and liquidity risks to the members of the internationally active insurance group that are engaged in the business of insurance are identified by management; and

(ii) reasonable and effective mitigation measures are in place; or

(2) request, from any member of an internationally active insurance group subject to the commissioner's supervision, information necessary and appropriate to assess enterprise risk, including but not limited to information about the members of the internationally active insurance group regarding:

(i) governance, risk assessment, and management;

(ii) capital adequacy; and

(iii) material intercompany transactions;

(3) coordinate and, through the authority of the regulatory officials of the jurisdictions where members of the internationally active insurance group are domiciled, compel development and implementation of reasonable measures designed to ensure that the internationally active insurance group is able to timely recognize and mitigate enterprise risks to members of ~~such~~ the internationally active insurance group that are engaged in the business of insurance;

(4) communicate with other state, federal and international regulatory agencies for members within the internationally active insurance group and share relevant information subject to the confidentiality provisions of section 60D.22, through supervisory colleges as set forth in section 60D.215 or otherwise;

(5) enter into agreements with or obtain documentation from any insurer registered under section 60D.19, any member of the internationally active insurance group, and any other state, federal, and international regulatory agencies for members of the internationally active insurance group, providing the basis for or otherwise clarifying the commissioner's role as groupwide supervisor, including provisions for resolving disputes with other regulatory officials. ~~Such~~ Agreements or documentation under this clause shall not serve as evidence in any proceeding that any insurer or person within an insurance holding company system not domiciled or incorporated in this state is doing business in this state or is otherwise subject to jurisdiction in this state; and

(6) other groupwide supervision activities, consistent with the authorities and purposes enumerated above, as considered necessary by the commissioner.

(f) If the commissioner acknowledges that another regulatory official from a jurisdiction that is not accredited by the NAIC is the groupwide supervisor, the commissioner is authorized to reasonably cooperate, through supervisory colleges or otherwise, with groupwide supervision undertaken by the groupwide supervisor, provided that:

(1) the commissioner's cooperation is in compliance with the laws of this state; and

(2) the regulatory official acknowledged as the groupwide supervisor also recognizes and cooperates with the commissioner's activities as a groupwide supervisor for other internationally active insurance groups where applicable. Where ~~such~~ recognition and cooperation by the groupwide supervisor is not reasonably reciprocal, the commissioner is authorized to refuse recognition and cooperation.

(g) The commissioner is authorized to enter into agreements with or obtain documentation from any insurer registered under section 60D.19, any affiliate of the insurer, and other state, federal, and international regulatory agencies for members of the internationally active insurance group, that provide the basis for or otherwise clarify a regulatory official's role as groupwide supervisor.

(h) A registered insurer subject to this section shall be liable for and shall pay the reasonable expenses of the commissioner's participation in the administration of this section, including the engagement of attorneys, actuaries, and any other professionals and all reasonable travel expenses.

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.22, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Classification protection and use of information by commissioner.** (a) Documents, materials, or other information in the possession or control of the department that are obtained by or disclosed to the commissioner or any other person in the course of an examination or investigation made pursuant to section 60D.21 and all information reported pursuant to sections 60D.17, except as provided in section 60D.17, subdivision 1, paragraph (e); ~~60D.18; 60D.19; and 60D.20;~~ and 60D.217, are classified as confidential or protected nonpublic or both, are not subject to subpoena, and are not subject to discovery or admissible in evidence in a private civil action. However, the commissioner may use the documents, materials, or other information in the furtherance of any regulatory or legal action brought as a part of the commissioner's official duties. The commissioner shall not otherwise make the documents, materials, or other information public without the prior written consent of the insurer to which it pertains unless the commissioner, after giving the insurer and its affiliates who would be affected by this action notice and opportunity to be heard, determines that the interest of policyholders, shareholders, or the public ~~will be~~ is served by the publication of it, in which event the commissioner may publish all or any part in the manner the commissioner deems appropriate.

(b) For purposes of the information reported and provided to the department pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, the commissioner must maintain the confidentiality of the group capital calculation and group capital ratio produced within the calculation and any group capital information received from an insurance holding company supervised by the Federal Reserve Board or any United States groupwide supervisor.

(c) For purposes of the information reported and provided to the department pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11c, the commissioner must maintain the confidentiality of the liquidity stress test results and supporting disclosures and any liquidity stress test information received from an insurance holding company supervised by the Federal Reserve Board and non-United States groupwide supervisors.

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.22, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Sharing of information.** In order to assist in the performance of the commissioner's duties, the commissioner:

(1) may share documents, materials, or other information, including the confidential, protected nonpublic, and privileged documents, materials, or information subject to this section, including proprietary and trade secret documents and materials, with: (i) other state, federal, and international regulatory agencies; ~~with;~~ (ii) the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries;~~ (iii) any third-party consultants designated by the commissioner; and ~~with~~ (iv) state, federal, and international law enforcement authorities, including members of any supervisory college described in section 60D.215, provided that the recipient agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality and privileged status of the document, material, or other information, and has verified in writing the legal authority to maintain confidentiality;

(2) notwithstanding clause (1), may only share confidential, protected nonpublic, and privileged documents, materials, or information reported pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11a, with commissioners of states having statutes or regulations substantially similar to subdivision 1 and who have agreed in writing not to disclose this information;

(3) may receive documents, materials, or information, including otherwise confidential and privileged documents, materials, or information from the NAIC and ~~its~~ the NAIC's affiliates and subsidiaries and from regulatory and law enforcement officials of other foreign or domestic jurisdictions, and shall maintain as confidential, protected nonpublic, or privileged any document, material, or information received with notice or the understanding that it is confidential or privileged under the laws of the jurisdiction that is the source of the document, material, or information; and

(4) shall enter into written agreements with the NAIC and a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner governing sharing and use of information provided pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29 consistent with this clause that shall:

(i) specify procedures and protocols regarding the confidentiality and security of information shared with the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries~~ or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29, including procedures and protocols for sharing by the NAIC with other state, federal, or international regulators. The agreement must provide that the recipient agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality and privileged status of the documents, materials, or other information, and has verified in writing the legal authority to maintain confidentiality;

(ii) specify that ownership of information shared with the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries~~ or a third-party consultant pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29 remains with the commissioner and the NAIC's ~~or a third-party consultant's~~, as designated by the commissioner, use of the information is subject to the direction of the commissioner;

(iii) excluding documents, material, or information reported pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11c, prohibit the NAIC or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner from storing the information shared pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29 in a permanent database after the underlying analysis is completed;

~~(iii)~~ (iv) require prompt notice to be given to an insurer whose confidential or protected nonpublic information in the possession of the NAIC or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29 is subject to a request or subpoena to the NAIC or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner for disclosure or production; ~~and~~

~~(iv)~~ (v) require the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries~~ or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner to consent to intervention by an insurer in any judicial or administrative action in which the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries~~ or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner may be required to disclose confidential or protected nonpublic information about the insurer shared with the NAIC ~~and its affiliates and subsidiaries~~ or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29; and

(vi) for documents, material, or information reported pursuant to section 60D.19, subdivision 11c, in the case of an agreement involving a third-party consultant, provide for notification of the identity of the consultant to the applicable insurers.

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.22, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Classification protection and use by others.** Documents, materials, or other information in the possession or control of the NAIC or a third-party consultant designated by the commissioner pursuant to sections 60D.15 to 60D.29 are confidential, protected nonpublic, or privileged, are not subject to subpoena, and are not subject to discovery or admissible in evidence in a private civil action.

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.22, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7. **Certain disclosures or publication prohibited.** (a) The group capital calculation and resulting group capital ratio required under section 60D.19, subdivision 11b, and the liquidity stress test along with the liquidity stress test's results and supporting disclosures required under section 60D.19, subdivision 11c, are regulatory tools to assess group risks and capital adequacy and group liquidity risks, respectively, and are not intended as a means to rank insurers or insurance holding company systems generally.

(b) Except as otherwise required under sections 60D.09 to 60D.29, making, publishing, disseminating, circulating, or placing before the public, or causing directly or indirectly to be made, published, disseminated, circulated, or placed before the public in a newspaper, magazine, or other publication, or in the form of a notice, circular, pamphlet, letter, or poster, or over any radio, television station, or any electronic means of communication available to the public, or in any other way as an advertisement, announcement, or statement containing a representation or statement with regard to the group capital calculation, group capital ratio, the liquidity stress test results, or supporting disclosures for the liquidity stress test of any insurer or any insurer group, or of any component derived in the calculation by any insurer, broker, or other person engaged in any manner in the insurance business is misleading and is prohibited.

(c) Notwithstanding paragraph (b), an insurer may publish an announcement in a written publication if any materially false statement with respect to the group capital calculation, resulting group capital ratio, an inappropriate comparison of any amount to an insurer's or insurance group's group capital calculation or resulting group capital ratio, liquidity stress test result, supporting disclosures for the liquidity stress test, or an inappropriate comparison of any amount to an insurer's or insurance group's liquidity stress test result or supporting disclosures is published in any written publication and the insurer is able to demonstrate to the commissioner with substantial proof the statement's falsity or inappropriateness. The sole purpose of an announcement under this paragraph must be to rebut the materially false statement.

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.24, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Voting of securities; when prohibited.** No security that is the subject of any agreement or arrangement regarding acquisition, or that is acquired or to be acquired, in contravention of the provisions of this chapter or of any rule or order issued by the commissioner may be voted at any shareholder's meeting, or may be counted for quorum purposes, and any action of shareholders requiring the affirmative vote of a percentage of shares may be taken as though the securities were not issued and outstanding. No action taken at the meeting shall be invalidated by the voting of the securities, unless the action would materially affect control of the insurer or unless the courts of this state have so ordered. If an insurer or the commissioner has reason to believe that any security of the insurer has been or is about to be acquired in contravention of the provisions of this chapter or of any rule or order issued by the commissioner, the insurer or the commissioner may apply to the district court for the county in which the insurer has its principal place of business to enjoin any offer, request, invitation, agreement, or acquisition made in contravention of section ~~60D.16~~ 60D.17 or any rule or order issued by the commissioner to enjoin the voting of any security so acquired, to void any vote of the security already cast at any meeting of shareholders and for other equitable relief as the nature of the case and the interest of the insurer's policyholders or the public requires.

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60D.25, is amended to read:

60D.25 RECEIVERSHIP.

Whenever it appears to the commissioner that any person has committed a violation of this chapter that so impairs the financial condition of a domestic insurer as to threaten insolvency or make the further transaction of business by it hazardous to its policyholders, creditors, shareholders, or the public, ~~then~~ the commissioner may proceed as provided in chapter 60B to take possessions of the property of the domestic insurer and to conduct the business of ~~that~~ the domestic insurer."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "establishing group capital calculations for insurers; requiring insurers to complete a NAIC liquidity stress test; requiring insurers to file group capital calculations and results from the NAIC liquidity stress test; requiring insurers to secure a deposit or bond;"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

The report was adopted.

Her and O'Driscoll from the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2607, A bill for an act relating to commerce; requiring insurers to provide a copy of a current policy to the insured; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 72A.20, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, line 8, after the second "policy" insert "of automobile insurance under section 65B.14, subdivision 2, or homeowner's insurance under section 65A.27, subdivision 4."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be placed on the General Register.

The report was adopted.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. Nos. 62, 264, 1011, 1027, 1083, 1094, 1265, 1520, 1596, 1659, 1744, 2067, 2361, 2483, 2595 and 2607 were read for the second time.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following House Files were introduced:

Murphy introduced:

H. F. No. 2935, A bill for an act relating to human services; extending the availability of the appropriation for an engagement services pilot grant; amending Laws 2024, chapter 127, article 53, section 2, subdivision 15.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Duran, Niska, Rymer, Engen, Joy, Stier, Bliss, Harder, Schwartz, Hudson and O'Driscoll introduced:

H. F. No. 2936, A bill for an act relating to corrections; requiring the commissioner of corrections to submit certain proposed rules for legislative approval prior to implementation; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 241.021, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

McDonald and Scott introduced:

H. F. No. 2937, A bill for an act relating to civil law; regulating the use of parenting consultants in family court cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 518.1751, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Duran and Feist introduced:

H. F. No. 2938, A bill for an act relating to data practices; permitting access to unredacted portable recording system data related to collision investigations; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 13.825, subdivision 4.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Wiener and Nash introduced:

H. F. No. 2939, A bill for an act relating to child protection; delaying implementation dates for provisions of the Minnesota African American Family Preservation and Child Welfare Disproportionality Act; amending Laws 2024, chapter 117, sections 1; 2; 3; 4; 5; 6; 7; 8; 9; 10; 14; 15; 16; 17; 18; 19; 20; 21.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

Heintzeman introduced:

H. F. No. 2940, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; appropriating money for Mississippi Headwaters Board.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources Finance and Policy.

Nelson and Allen introduced:

H. F. No. 2941, A bill for an act relating to agriculture; appropriating money for the Minnesota Agriculture and Rural Leadership program.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture Finance and Policy.

Nadeau and Lillie introduced:

H. F. No. 2942, A bill for an act relating to retirement; requiring the commissioner of employment and economic development to disclose information; making administrative and technical changes to the Minnesota Secure Choice Retirement Program Act; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 116J.401, by adding a subdivision; 187.03, subdivisions 5, 7, by adding a subdivision; 187.05, subdivisions 4, 6, by adding a subdivision; 187.07, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 6; 187.08, subdivisions 3, 7; 187.11.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Nadeau and Lillie introduced:

H. F. No. 2943, A bill for an act relating to retirement; Minnesota Secure Choice Retirement Program; adding penalties for noncompliance; providing criminal penalties; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 187.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Warwas introduced:

H. F. No. 2944, A bill for an act relating to education finance; authorizing the board of a consolidated school district to renew an expiring referendum established pursuant to the consolidation; clarifying the requirements for school board renewal of an expiring referendum; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 123A.73, subdivisions 4, 5; 126C.17, subdivision 9b.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education Finance.

Nadeau and Mahamoud introduced:

H. F. No. 2945, A bill for an act relating to human services; appropriating money for a grant to Niyah Recovery Initiative.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Perryman introduced:

H. F. No. 2946, A bill for an act relating to finance; proposing the Minnesota Bitcoin Act; allowing payments to the state by cryptocurrency; authorizing the State Board of Investment to invest in cryptocurrency; modifying various tax provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 11A.24, subdivision 6; 16A.626; 276.05; 279.025; 289A.02, subdivision 8, by adding a subdivision; 290.01, by adding a subdivision; 290.0132, by adding a subdivision; 290.0134, by adding a subdivision; 290.033; 290.091, subdivision 2; 290.0921, subdivision 3; 354B.25, subdivision 2; 356A.06, subdivision 7; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16A.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Nelson introduced:

H. F. No. 2947, A bill for an act relating to environment; exempting certain components in textile furnishings and upholstered furniture from PFAS prohibitions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 116.943, subdivision 8.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources Finance and Policy.

Engen, Rymer and Dippel introduced:

H. F. No. 2948, A bill for an act relating to transportation; eliminating highway toll collection authority; providing for reallocation of certain user fee revenue; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 160.845; 160.93, subdivisions 1, 5; 473.4485, subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 160.93, subdivisions 2, 2a.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

Engen, Altendorf, Knudsen, Hudson, Rymer, Dippel and Duran introduced:

H. F. No. 2949, A bill for an act relating to state government; prohibiting legislators and executive branch appointees from receiving compensation from any nonprofit organization that receives state grant funding; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 3.084, subdivision 2; 15.0597, by adding a subdivision; 15.06, subdivision 9.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Backer and Duran introduced:

H. F. No. 2950, A bill for an act relating to human services; providing state-funded medical assistance and MinnesotaCare for inmates of county jails; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 256B.055, subdivision 14; 256L.04, subdivision 12; 641.15, subdivision 2.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Robbins introduced:

H. F. No. 2951, A bill for an act relating to transportation; appropriating money for the interchange at marked U.S. Highway 169 and Hennepin County State-Aid Highway 130 in the city of Maple Grove; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

Myers and Witte introduced:

H. F. No. 2952, A bill for an act relating to veterans; requiring a report; appropriating money for a grant to the United Heroes League.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Veterans and Military Affairs Division.

Myers introduced:

H. F. No. 2953, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for water main improvements in the city of Shorewood; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Kresha and Schomacker introduced:

H. F. No. 2954, A bill for an act relating to state government; designating August 19 as Minnesota Aviation Day; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 10.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Backer, Bierman, Nadeau, Fischer and Huot introduced:

H. F. No. 2955, A bill for an act relating to human services; establishing a county-administered rural medical assistance program; establishing payment, coverage, and eligibility requirements for the CARMA program; directing the commissioner of human services to seek federal waivers; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 256B.69, subdivision 3a; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256B.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Harder, Wolgamott and Gillman introduced:

H. F. No. 2956, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; removing cap on reasonable attorney fees and punitive damages for certain actions in places of public accommodation alleging discrimination; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 604.12, subdivision 3.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Knudsen introduced:

H. F. No. 2957, A bill for an act relating to human services; requiring the commissioner of human services to revalidate providers enrolled in Minnesota health care programs every three years; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 256B.04, subdivision 21.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Johnson, P., introduced:

H. F. No. 2958, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for Saint Ann's Residence.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Scott introduced:

H. F. No. 2959, A bill for an act relating to government data practices; modifying data protection requirements in certain property tax proceedings; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 13.51, subdivisions 2, 4; 271.06, subdivision 6; 278.05, subdivisions 3, 6.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Warwas; Igo; Skraba; Johnson, P.; Stephenson and Bliss introduced:

H. F. No. 2960, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for a grant to Fishing with Vets.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

McDonald, Hudson, Knudsen, Davids and Baker introduced:

H. F. No. 2961, A bill for an act relating to taxation; sales and use; expanding the exemption for certain meals and drinks; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 297A.68, by adding subdivisions.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Baker; Perryman; Johnson, W.; Bakeberg; Zeleznikar and Skraba introduced:

H. F. No. 2962, A bill for an act relating to economic development; modifying the paid leave program; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 268B.01, subdivisions 17, 18, 23, 35, by adding a subdivision; 268B.04, subdivisions 3, 5; 268B.10, subdivisions 2, 3; 268B.11; 268B.14, subdivision 7.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Anderson, P. E., introduced:

H. F. No. 2963, A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing an Office of Inspector General; providing powers and duties; providing enhanced grant oversight; prohibiting retaliation; transferring or repealing existing executive Offices of Inspector General; providing detection and prevention of fraud; providing penalties; making conforming changes; requiring reports; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 3.855, subdivision 3; 3.97, subdivision 1, by adding subdivisions; 3.971, subdivisions 1, 9; 16B.97, subdivisions 2, 4; 16B.98, subdivisions 4, 8, 14; 16B.991, subdivision 1; 142B.53; 245A.24; 268.19, subdivision 1; 268B.30; 609.456, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 3; 15; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 13.321, subdivision 12; 127A.21.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Norris and Dotseth introduced:

H. F. No. 2964, A bill for an act relating to manufactured housing; modifying notice of offer requirements for unsolicited manufactured home park sales; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 327C.097, subdivision 3.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Housing Finance and Policy.

Norris and Myers introduced:

H. F. No. 2965, A bill for an act relating to manufactured housing; creating additional requirements for contents of notice letters; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 327C.095, subdivision 12.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Housing Finance and Policy.

Agbaje introduced:

H. F. No. 2966, A bill for an act relating to housing; creating a statewide landlord database; creating a civil penalty for a failure to register with the statewide landlord database; providing civil remedies; providing attorney general enforcement; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 8.31, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 462A.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Housing Finance and Policy.

Agbaje introduced:

H. F. No. 2967, A bill for an act relating to child protection; modifying reports for the African American Child Well-Being Advisory Council; requiring reports; appropriating money for child protection workers, child welfare technology improvements, and Family First Prevention Services Act grants; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 260.68, subdivision 2; 260.691, subdivision 2.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

Coulter, Kraft, Falconer, Acomb, Kotyza-Witthuhn and Youakim introduced:

H. F. No. 2968, A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; placing limitations on county levy for certain assessment services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 273.063.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Coulter; Wolgamott; Klevorn; Hanson, J., and Hicks introduced:

H. F. No. 2969, A bill for an act relating to labor; exempting full-time graduate students from the definition of public employee; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 179A.03, subdivision 14.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Klevorn introduced:

H. F. No. 2970, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for improvements to the Capitol campus.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Pursell and Bierman introduced:

H. F. No. 2971, A bill for an act relating to health; appropriating money for nitrate private well mitigation.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Sencer-Mura introduced:

H. F. No. 2972, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for TaikoArts Midwest.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Elkins introduced:

H. F. No. 2973, A bill for an act relating to taxation; sales and use; local government aid; increasing the state sales tax rate; providing an expiration for certain laws applicable to local sales taxes; dedicating revenue to local government aid distributions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 297A.62, subdivision 1; 297A.94; 297A.99, subdivision 13; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 477A.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Stephenson introduced:

H. F. No. 2974, A bill for an act relating to energy; requiring landlords to make apportioned and submetered utility service bills for residential buildings due not less than 31 days from the date of bill issuance; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 216B.023, subdivision 1; 504B.216, subdivision 5.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Energy Finance and Policy.

Jones introduced:

H. F. No. 2975, A bill for an act relating to transportation; requiring work zone safety and work zone driving rules as driver education and driver examination subjects; requiring the driver's manual to include work zone safety information; authorizing rulemaking; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 171.01, by adding a subdivision; 171.0701, by adding a subdivision; 171.0705, by adding a subdivision; 171.13, subdivision 1.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

Hollins introduced:

H. F. No. 2976, A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing for mitigated departures for certain offenders who have been victims; requiring presentence investigation reports to include certain information; allowing certain offenders who have been victims to apply for a pardon or for clemency; directing the Minnesota Sentencing Guidelines Commission to include an additional mitigating factor; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 609.115, subdivision 1; 609.133, subdivision 7; 638.12, subdivision 2; 638.15, subdivision 1; 638.19, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

Vang introduced:

H. F. No. 2977, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for Oromo youth programs.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Hansen, R., introduced:

H. F. No. 2978, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for the Saint Stefan Romanian Orthodox Church.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Sencer-Mura, Cha, Finke, Her, Hussein, Norris, Clardy, Momanyi-Hiltsley, Falconer and Youakim introduced:

H. F. No. 2979, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for the Minnesota Youth Poet Laureate.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Gomez introduced:

H. F. No. 2980, A bill for an act relating to public safety; modifying definitions related to controlled substances; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 152.01, subdivisions 12a, 14a, 19.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

Gomez introduced:

H. F. No. 2981, A bill for an act relating to workforce development; appropriating money for a grant to Avivo.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Hussein; Pérez-Vega; Lee, K.; Noor; Xiong and Momanyi-Hiltsley introduced:

H. F. No. 2982, A bill for an act relating to economic development; appropriating money for a nonprofit to create a credit union; requiring a report.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Pursell and Myers introduced:

H. F. No. 2983, A bill for an act relating to consumer safety; modifying requirements for products containing lead or cadmium; prohibiting sale of menstrual products containing arsenic or chemicals of high concern; requiring certain labeling and testing for menstrual products; requiring rulemaking; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 325E.3892, subdivisions 1, 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325E.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy.

Hussein introduced:

H. F. No. 2984, A bill for an act relating to economic development; establishing the Rondo Restorative Development Authority for the operations of a land bridge in the Rondo neighborhood of St. Paul; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116J.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Gottfried and Finke introduced:

H. F. No. 2985, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for capital improvements at the Guidant John Rose Minnesota OVAL in the city of Roseville; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Kraft introduced:

H. F. No. 2986, A bill for an act relating to energy; requiring additional information in a public utility's resource plan; directing public utilities to file a virtual power plant tariff and program with the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission; providing for cost recovery; requiring reports; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 216B.2422, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 216B.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Energy Finance and Policy.

Smith introduced:

H. F. No. 2987, A bill for an act relating to cannabis; establishing certain regulations on lenders to cannabis businesses; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 342.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy.

Youakim, Huot and Davids introduced:

H. F. No. 2988, A bill for an act relating to education; extending Minnesota State High School League tickets and admissions sales tax savings; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 128C.24; 297A.70, subdivision 11a; Laws 2017, First Special Session chapter 1, article 3, sections 4; 26.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Norris and Witte introduced:

H. F. No. 2989, A bill for an act relating to legacy; appropriating money for the World Junior Hockey Championships.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Frazier introduced:

H. F. No. 2990, A bill for an act relating to employees; modifying mandatory break laws; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 177.253, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 177.254, subdivisions 1, 2, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Frazier introduced:

H. F. No. 2991, A bill for an act relating to workforce development; requiring a report; appropriating money for a grant to the Minnesota Association of Black Lawyers for a program for Black Minnesota undergraduates exploring law school and legal careers.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Rehm introduced:

H. F. No. 2992, A bill for an act relating to transportation; appropriating money for certain traffic safety initiatives.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

Lee, K., introduced:

H. F. No. 2993, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for a grant to Saint Paul Urban Tennis.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Kotzya-Witthuhn, Witte, Nelson, Nadeau, Rehrauer, Youakim, Falconer, Greene and Kraft introduced:

H. F. No. 2994, A bill for an act relating to workforce development; requiring a report; appropriating money for a grant to the Hennepin County Sheriff's Office for a child care pilot program to assist with retention of law enforcement and first responders.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Noor and Schomacker introduced:

H. F. No. 2995, A bill for an act relating to human services; providing for human services forecast adjustments; appropriating money.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Youakim and Kraft introduced:

H. F. No. 2996, A bill for an act relating to unemployment; modifying the definition of available for suitable employment; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 268.085, subdivision 15.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Bierman introduced:

H. F. No. 2997, A bill for an act relating to health occupations; modifying pharmacy intern provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 151.01, subdivision 15; 151.065, subdivisions 1, 3, 6; 151.101; repealing Minnesota Rules, parts 6800.5100, subpart 5; 6800.5400, subparts 5, 6.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Freiberg; Elkins; Gottfried; Bahner; Hill; Jones; Tabke; Virnig; Hicks; Pursell; Hanson, J.; Frazier; Liebling; Bierman; Curran; Jordan; Youakim; Finke; Hollins; Acomb; Coulter; Long and Falconer introduced:

H. F. No. 2998, A bill for an act relating to health; establishing an end-of-life option for terminally ill adults with a prognosis of six months or less; providing criminal penalties; classifying certain data; requiring reports; providing immunity for certain acts; authorizing enforcement; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 61A.031; 144.99, subdivision 1; 609.215, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 145E.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Feist introduced:

H. F. No. 2999, A bill for an act relating to judiciary; eliminating ability of court to order fine in delinquency proceeding or juvenile major water or traffic offender proceeding; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 260B.198, subdivision 1; 260B.225, subdivision 9; 260B.235, subdivision 4.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Feist introduced:

H. F. No. 3000, A bill for an act relating to public safety; authorizing payment of preliminary monetary damages to certain exonerated individuals; establishing the exoneration compensation account in the special revenue fund; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 590.11, subdivision 3; 611.365, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 611.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

Hollins, Smith, Frazier, Falconer, Mahamoud, Berg, Virnig, Agbaje, Xiong, Curran, Vang, Gomez and Pursell introduced:

H. F. No. 3001, A bill for an act relating to human services; establishing a Minnesota financial opportunity grant pilot program; requiring a report; appropriating money.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Hicks introduced:

H. F. No. 3002, A bill for an act relating to children, youth, and families; modifying eligibility requirements for foster care benefits after age 18 to include children for whom permanent legal and physical custody is transferred to a relative after age ten; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 256B.055, subdivision 17; 260C.212, subdivision 1; 260C.451, subdivisions 1, 3, 6, by adding a subdivision; 260C.452, subdivision 1.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

Hicks introduced:

H. F. No. 3003, A bill for an act relating to employment; requiring priority placement in open positions for certain disabled employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 363A.08, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Hussein introduced:

H. F. No. 3004, A bill for an act relating to workforce development; requiring a report; appropriating money to create a centralized digital platform to provide youth with information about workforce opportunities.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Gottfried, Hemmingsen-Jaeger and Feist introduced:

H. F. No. 3005, A bill for an act relating to veterans affairs; requiring reports; appropriating money for Metro Meals on Wheels.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Veterans and Military Affairs Division.

Moller and Novotny introduced:

H. F. No. 3006, A bill for an act relating to corrections; appropriating money for deficiencies in the budget of the Department of Corrections; amending Laws 2023, chapter 52, article 2, section 6, as amended.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Public Safety Finance and Policy.

Fischer and Acomb introduced:

H. F. No. 3007, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for evaluation and permitting of projects requiring large water appropriations; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 103G.265, by adding a subdivision; 103G.271, by adding a subdivision; 116D.04, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources Finance and Policy.

Hill, Xiong and Bliss introduced:

H. F. No. 3008, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for mental health services and outdoor activities for currently serving military personnel and veterans.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Keeler, Kozlowski and Hanson, J., introduced:

H. F. No. 3009, A bill for an act relating to child protection; modifying the multidisciplinary child protection team and its duties; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 260E.02, subdivisions 1, 2, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

Xiong introduced:

H. F. No. 3010, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for cultural upgrades at Battle Creek Recreation Center.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Xiong introduced:

H. F. No. 3011, A bill for an act relating to economic development; appropriating money to the Department of Employment and Economic Development for a grant to the city of Maplewood.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Xiong introduced:

H. F. No. 3012, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for youth boxing programs.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Xiong; Gomez; Lee, F.; Vang and Hussein introduced:

H. F. No. 3013, A bill for an act relating to workforce development; appropriating money to Milestone Community Development for a cybersecurity training program.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Hansen, R., introduced:

H. F. No. 3014, A bill for an act relating to state government; appropriating money for YouLead2025.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on State Government Finance and Policy.

Fischer introduced:

H. F. No. 3015, A bill for an act relating to environment; requiring certain permit applications to be submitted to affected Tribes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 84.027, by adding a subdivision; 116.03, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources Finance and Policy.

Reyer introduced:

H. F. No. 3016, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for a multipurpose programming and administrative facility for nonprofit organizations.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Reyer introduced:

H. F. No. 3017, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for a retreat center for victims of gun violence.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

Reyer introduced:

H. F. No. 3018, A bill for an act relating to human services; establishing a county and Tribe housing support administrative rate; requiring reports; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 256I.05, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Human Services Finance and Policy.

Momanyi-Hiltsley introduced:

H. F. No. 3019, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for Osseo sesquicentennial.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Noor introduced:

H. F. No. 3020, A bill for an act relating to economic development; appropriating money to Parents in Community Action.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Virnig introduced:

H. F. No. 3021, A bill for an act relating to health; establishing a grant program to fund youth sports physicals by mobile clinics; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 145.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health Finance and Policy.

Scott and Liebling introduced:

H. F. No. 3022, A bill for an act relating to legislative enactments; making miscellaneous technical corrections to laws and statutes; correcting erroneous, obsolete, and omitted text and references; removing redundant, conflicting, and superseded provisions; making style and form changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 1.135, subdivision 2; 11A.04; 12B.50; 16C.16, subdivision 10; 17.354; 18F.02, subdivision 2a; 27.01, subdivision 8; 27.069; 27.10; 27.13; 27.19, subdivision 1; 45.0135, subdivision 8; 84.027, subdivisions 16, 19; 84.033, subdivision 1; 84.0835, subdivision 1; 84.0855, subdivision 3; 84.66, subdivision 12; 84.788, subdivision 2; 84.791, subdivision 5; 84.793, subdivision 1; 84.925, subdivision 1; 84A.02; 84A.33, subdivision 2; 84B.03, subdivisions 1, 4; 84D.02, subdivision 3; 85.055, subdivision 1a; 85.22, subdivision 3; 85.41, subdivision 3; 86A.05, subdivision 5; 88.79, subdivision 4; 89.018, subdivision 7; 89.19, subdivision 2; 89.21; 89.22, subdivision 1; 89.53, subdivision 1; 89.551; 90.02; 90.041, subdivision 10; 90.195; 93.47, subdivision 3; 97A.075, subdivisions 1, 7; 97A.101, subdivisions 2, 4; 97A.133, subdivision 3; 97A.445, subdivision 1; 97A.451, subdivision 3b; 97A.465, subdivision 5; 97B.015, subdivisions 4, 7; 97B.715, subdivision 1; 97B.801; 97C.005, subdivision 3; 97C.081, subdivision 10; 97C.205; 97C.342, subdivision 4; 97C.815, subdivision 2; 97C.855; 103A.341; 103B.101, subdivision 2; 103B.215, subdivision 4; 103B.311, subdivision 4; 103B.314, subdivision 4; 103C.201, subdivision 8; 103C.211; 103C.601, subdivision 4; 103C.611, subdivision 3; 103D.271, subdivision 1; 103D.335, subdivisions 19, 21; 103D.405, subdivision 1; 103D.905, subdivision 2; 103E.215, subdivision 3; 103E.291; 103E.325, subdivision 2; 103G.287, subdivision 4; 103G.412; 103H.105; 115.03, subdivision 1; 115A.03, subdivision 37; 115A.64, subdivisions 4, 6; 117.025, subdivision 10; 120B.024, subdivision 2; 120B.23, subdivision 3; 121A.15, subdivision 8; 122A.18, subdivision 1; 122A.26, subdivision 2; 122A.76, subdivision 6; 123A.26, subdivision 1; 123B.09, subdivision 5b; 124D.09, subdivision 19; 124D.42, subdivision 8; 124D.475; 124E.16, subdivision 3; 125A.63, subdivision 5; 126C.13, subdivision 4; 127A.20, subdivision 2; 127A.21, subdivision 5; 127A.41, subdivisions 8, 9; 127A.85; 142A.03, subdivision 1; 142A.609, subdivision 5; 142D.05, subdivision 3; 142D.06, subdivision 1; 142D.11, subdivisions 3, 4, 6; 142D.12, subdivision 1; 142D.25, subdivision 4; 142E.01, subdivision 26; 142G.01, subdivisions 3, 4; 142G.38; 144.291, subdivision 2; 144.966, subdivision 2; 144A.43, subdivision 28; 144E.101, subdivision 14; 144E.28, subdivision 5; 144E.50, subdivision 6; 144G.08, subdivision 64; 147.02, subdivision 6a; 147.09; 147.091, subdivisions 1, 6; 147.111, subdivision 6; 147A.01, subdivision 20; 147A.09, subdivision 3; 147A.13, subdivisions 4, 6, 7; 147A.14, subdivision 6; 147A.17, subdivision 1; 147B.02, subdivisions 1, 7, 9; 147B.06, subdivision 4; 147E.10, subdivision 1; 147E.15, subdivision 11; 147E.40, subdivision 1; 147F.05, subdivision 2; 148E.285, subdivision 4; 150A.055, subdivision 1; 150A.06, subdivision 12; 154.19; 161.125, subdivision 3; 161.45, subdivision 4; 161.46, subdivision 1; 162.09, subdivision 4; 163.161; 168.012, subdivision 13; 168.10, subdivision 1c; 168.1291, subdivision 5; 168.187, subdivision 17; 168.27, subdivision 2; 168.327, subdivision 6; 168.345, subdivision 2; 168A.01, subdivisions 18, 19, 20; 168A.14, subdivision 1a; 169.345, subdivisions 3c, 4; 169.58, subdivision 5; 169.781, subdivision 3; 169.81, subdivision 3; 171.017, subdivision 2; 171.06, subdivision 6; 171.0605, subdivision 3; 171.12, subdivision 7; 171.301, subdivision 1; 174.02, subdivision 5; 174.22, subdivision 7; 174.24, subdivision 1a; 174.29, subdivision 1; 174.30, subdivisions 1, 10; 181.953, subdivision 5a; 216B.023, subdivision 3; 216B.1691, subdivision 2h; 216B.241, subdivision 5a; 216C.377, subdivision 1; 216C.379; 216I.07, subdivision 3; 216I.19, subdivisions 2, 4; 218.011, subdivision 8; 219.015, subdivision 1; 219.055, subdivision 2a; 221.031, subdivisions 3b, 10; 221.0314, subdivision 2; 221.81, subdivision 4; 245.4905, subdivision 1; 245.495; 245.735, subdivision 4d; 245A.07, subdivision 3; 245C.02, subdivision 6a; 245D.091, subdivision 2; 245I.23, subdivision 15; 256.01, subdivision 2; 256.0451, subdivisions 3, 11, 19; 256B.0625, subdivision 5m; 256L.02, subdivision 1; 256P.001; 256P.04, subdivision 9; 256P.06, subdivision 3; 256P.10, subdivision 3; 256R.02, subdivision 19; 257.0769, subdivision 1; 260.762, subdivision 2a; 260C.151, subdivision 2a; 260C.178, subdivision 1; 260C.71, subdivision 1; 260E.03, subdivision 23; 260E.14, subdivision 1; 260E.30, subdivision 6; 260E.36, subdivision 5; 270.075, subdivision 1; 270C.63, subdivision 13; 272.02, subdivision 104; 273.42, subdivision 1; 282.38, subdivisions 1, 2; 290.0132, subdivision 26; 290.06, subdivisions 2c, 23a; 297A.75, subdivision 1; 299F.051, subdivision 1a; 299J.05; 299K.08, subdivision 3a; 308C.301, subdivisions 8, 9, 13; 308C.411, subdivision 2; 308C.425, subdivision 3; 308C.545, subdivision 1; 308C.571, subdivision 1; 308C.721, subdivision 2; 308C.801, subdivision 2; 319B.40; 325D.44, subdivision 1a; 336.3-206; 336.9-301; 336.12-107; 352.91, subdivision 3c; 353D.07, subdivision 2; 353G.01, subdivisions 7b, 8b, 10a; 353G.09, subdivision 1a; 354B.31, subdivision 6; 360.013, subdivision 36; 360.031; 360.032, subdivision 1a; 360.62; 360.654; 360.915, subdivision 1; 393.07, subdivision 10; 403.36, subdivision 1;

446A.073, subdivisions 1, 2; 462A.051, subdivision 1; 462A.2096; 469.002, subdivision 25; 469.53; 469.54, subdivision 3; 473.4465, subdivision 3; 473J.23; 477A.0126, subdivision 3a; 477A.013, subdivision 14; 477A.0175, subdivision 1; 477A.24, subdivision 2; 518A.60; 518A.81, subdivision 8; 518A.82, subdivisions 1, 1a, 3, 5; 518B.01, subdivision 4; 576.22; 582.17; 582.18; Laws 2023, chapter 57, article 2, section 66; Laws 2024, chapter 115, article 4, section 3; article 11, section 6; Laws 2024, chapter 120, article 1, section 15; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 645; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, sections 13.465, subdivision 3; 41B.0391, subdivision 6; 115A.1441, subdivision 38; 127A.50, subdivision 3; 148E.130, subdivision 1a; 245.4902; 245C.11, subdivision 4; 275.71, subdivision 5; 469.177, subdivision 1e; 473.4465, subdivision 5; 473J.09, subdivision 14; 473J.14; Laws 2024, chapter 115, article 12, section 5; Laws 2024, chapter 120, article 3, section 3.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary Finance and Civil Law.

Johnson, P., introduced:

H. F. No. 3023, A bill for an act relating to unemployment insurance; adopting additional benefits for certain iron ore mining employees.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

Hanson, J., introduced:

H. F. No. 3024, A bill for an act relating to children; establishing a foster youth bill of rights; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 260C.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Children and Families Finance and Policy.

Falconer introduced:

H. F. No. 3025, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; establishing the nature as we age grant program; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 84.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources Finance and Policy.

Stephenson introduced:

H. F. No. 3026, A bill for an act relating to insurance; modifying notice provisions governing surplus lines brokers; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 60A.201, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Commerce Finance and Policy.

Gomez introduced:

H. F. No. 3027, A bill for an act relating to taxation; local sales and use; authorizing cities and counties to impose local sales taxes for certain projects; providing for oversight; requiring revenue sharing; requiring a report; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 297A.99, subdivisions 1, 3, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 297A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 297A.99, subdivision 3a.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Wolgamott introduced:

H. F. No. 3028, A bill for an act relating to taxation; sales and use; providing a refundable exemption for materials used in construction projects in redevelopment districts in the city of St. Cloud.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Wolgamott introduced:

H. F. No. 3029, A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing special tax increment financing authority to the city of St. Cloud.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Igo, Warwas, Skraba, Davis and Zeleznikar introduced:

H. F. No. 3030, A bill for an act relating to environment; facilitating approval of site-specific modifications to sulfate water quality standards during pendency of related rulemaking; providing for storage of reactive mine waste; providing for additional unemployment insurance benefits; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 93; 115; repealing Minnesota Rules, part 6132.2200.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Workforce, Labor, and Economic Development Finance and Policy.

McDonald, Skraba, Heintzeman and Hussein introduced:

H. F. No. 3031, A bill for an act relating to arts and cultural heritage; appropriating money for the Upsala Area Historical Society.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Legacy Finance.

Davids, Nash, Koegel and Huot introduced:

H. F. No. 3032, A bill for an act relating to taxation; charitable gambling; appropriating money to the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority contingent on certain revenues from the conduct of electronic pull-tabs; amending Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 297E.02, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Van Binsbergen, Baker and Gillman introduced:

H. F. No. 3033, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for a wastewater industrial pretreatment facility in the city of Litchfield; canceling part of an appropriation to the targeted population workforce grants program.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND LEGISLATIVE ADMINISTRATION

Niska from the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration, pursuant to rules 1.21 and 3.33, designated the following bills to be placed on the Calendar for the Day for Thursday, April 3, 2025 and established a prefiling requirement for amendments offered to the following bills:

H. F. Nos. 341, 1355 and 1998; S. F. No. 1360; and H. F. No. 1792.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Kresha moved that the name of Sexton be added as an author on H. F. No. 29. The motion prevailed.

Virnig moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 51. The motion prevailed.

Sencer-Mura moved that the name of Jones be added as an author on H. F. No. 99. The motion prevailed.

Dauids moved that the name of Bennett be added as an author on H. F. No. 174. The motion prevailed.

Dauids moved that the name of Harder be added as an author on H. F. No. 200. The motion prevailed.

Agbaje moved that the name of Pérez-Vega be added as an author on H. F. No. 339. The motion prevailed.

Murphy moved that the name of Harder be added as an author on H. F. No. 374. The motion prevailed.

West moved that the name of Gottfried be added as an author on H. F. No. 470. The motion prevailed.

Long moved that the names of Anderson, P. H., and Kraft be added as authors on H. F. No. 474. The motion prevailed.

Long moved that the name of Anderson, P. H., be added as an author on H. F. No. 475. The motion prevailed.

West moved that the name of Warwas be added as an author on H. F. No. 495. The motion prevailed.

Zeleznikar moved that the names of Perryman and Warwas be added as authors on H. F. No. 500. The motion prevailed.

Bliss moved that the name of Myers be added as an author on H. F. No. 530. The motion prevailed.

Myers moved that the names of Kotyza-Witthuhn and Hemmingsen-Jaeger be added as authors on H. F. No. 841. The motion prevailed.

Gordon moved that the name of Harder be added as an author on H. F. No. 987. The motion prevailed.

Bierman moved that the names of Johnson, P., and Pérez-Vega be added as authors on H. F. No. 1005. The motion prevailed.

Pérez-Vega moved that the name of Engen be added as an author on H. F. No. 1037. The motion prevailed.

Scott moved that the name of Curran be added as an author on H. F. No. 1039. The motion prevailed.

Bierman moved that the name of Bierman be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 1232. The motion prevailed.

Keeler moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 1266. The motion prevailed.

Reyer moved that the name of Kraft be added as an author on H. F. No. 1269. The motion prevailed.

West moved that the name of Gottfried be added as an author on H. F. No. 1271. The motion prevailed.

Her moved that the name of Kraft be added as an author on H. F. No. 1318. The motion prevailed.

Igo moved that the name of Feist be added as an author on H. F. No. 1332. The motion prevailed.

Baker moved that the names of Bierman and Zeleznikar be added as authors on H. F. No. 1355. The motion prevailed.

Perryman moved that the name of Jones be added as an author on H. F. No. 1372. The motion prevailed.

Schomacker moved that the name of Warwas be added as an author on H. F. No. 1419. The motion prevailed.

Clardy moved that the name of Feist be added as an author on H. F. No. 1511. The motion prevailed.

Clardy moved that the name of Feist be added as an author on H. F. No. 1516. The motion prevailed.

Murphy moved that the name of Schultz be added as an author on H. F. No. 1594. The motion prevailed.

Jordan moved that the name of Kraft be added as an author on H. F. No. 1624. The motion prevailed.

Huot moved that the name of Kraft be added as an author on H. F. No. 1641. The motion prevailed.

Reyer moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 1644. The motion prevailed.

Elkins moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 1652. The motion prevailed.

Johnson, P., moved that the name of Pérez-Vega be added as an author on H. F. No. 1686. The motion prevailed.

Frederick moved that the name of Greene be added as an author on H. F. No. 1708. The motion prevailed.

Pinto moved that the name of Frazier be added as an author on H. F. No. 1775. The motion prevailed.

Bakeberg moved that the name of Nadeau be added as an author on H. F. No. 1847. The motion prevailed.

Smith moved that the name of Falconer be added as an author on H. F. No. 1857. The motion prevailed.

Reyer moved that the name of Elkins be added as an author on H. F. No. 1934. The motion prevailed.

Backer moved that the name of Perryman be added as an author on H. F. No. 1935. The motion prevailed.

Johnson, P., moved that the names of Duran and Greene be added as authors on H. F. No. 1936. The motion prevailed.

Seencer-Mura moved that the names of Perryman, Zeleznikar and Schultz be added as authors on H. F. No. 2039. The motion prevailed.

Noor moved that the name of Warwas be added as an author on H. F. No. 2064. The motion prevailed.

Frazier moved that the name of Xiong be added as an author on H. F. No. 2094. The motion prevailed.

Kraft moved that the name of Hussein be added as an author on H. F. No. 2140. The motion prevailed.

Nadeau moved that the names of Hansen, R.; Harder and Rymer be added as authors on H. F. No. 2242. The motion prevailed.

Nadeau moved that the name of Witte be added as an author on H. F. No. 2318. The motion prevailed.

Agbaje moved that the name of Pérez-Vega be added as an author on H. F. No. 2319. The motion prevailed.

Berg moved that the name of Pérez-Vega be added as an author on H. F. No. 2325. The motion prevailed.

West moved that the names of Virnig and Warwas be added as authors on H. F. No. 2339. The motion prevailed.

Clardy moved that the names of Liebling and Frazier be added as authors on H. F. No. 2341. The motion prevailed.

Pérez-Vega moved that the names of Duran and Greene be added as authors on H. F. No. 2342. The motion prevailed.

Berg moved that the name of Xiong be added as an author on H. F. No. 2355. The motion prevailed.

Swedzinski moved that the name of Warwas be added as an author on H. F. No. 2360. The motion prevailed.

Feist moved that the name of Bennett be added as an author on H. F. No. 2362. The motion prevailed.

Nadeau moved that the names of Elkins, Pérez-Vega and Virnig be added as authors on H. F. No. 2367. The motion prevailed.

Mueller moved that the names of Reyer, Warwas, Perryman and Gottfried be added as authors on H. F. No. 2372. The motion prevailed.

Allen moved that the name of Kraft be added as an author on H. F. No. 2387. The motion prevailed.

Curran moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 2406. The motion prevailed.

Bliss moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 2410. The motion prevailed.

Witte moved that the name of Carroll be added as an author on H. F. No. 2477. The motion prevailed.

Kotzya-Witthuhn moved that the name of Zeleznikar be added as an author on H. F. No. 2518. The motion prevailed.

Pérez-Vega moved that the names of Hussein, Curran and Virnig be added as authors on H. F. No. 2523. The motion prevailed.

Duran moved that the name of Engen be added as an author on H. F. No. 2525. The motion prevailed.

Nadeau moved that the name of Norris be added as an author on H. F. No. 2557. The motion prevailed.

Bahner moved that the name of Keeler be added as an author on H. F. No. 2626. The motion prevailed.

Lillie moved that the name of Jones be added as an author on H. F. No. 2628. The motion prevailed.

Agbaje moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2687. The motion prevailed.

Agbaje moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2693. The motion prevailed.

Norris moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2695. The motion prevailed.

Smith moved that the name of Falconer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2701. The motion prevailed.

Stephenson moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2703. The motion prevailed.

Coulter moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2705. The motion prevailed.

Jones moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2709. The motion prevailed.

Smith moved that the name of Falconer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2716. The motion prevailed.

Greene moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2717. The motion prevailed.

Her moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2726. The motion prevailed.

Gomez moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2729. The motion prevailed.

Howard moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2740. The motion prevailed.

Frazier moved that the names of Hollins and Freiberg be added as authors on H. F. No. 2742. The motion prevailed.

Momanyi-Hiltsley moved that the name of Jones be added as an author on H. F. No. 2764. The motion prevailed.

Clardy moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2773. The motion prevailed.

Rymer moved that the name of Engen be added as an author on H. F. No. 2794. The motion prevailed.

Knudsen moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2817. The motion prevailed.

Koegel moved that the name of Rehrauer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2847. The motion prevailed.

Witte moved that the name of Schwartz be added as an author on H. F. No. 2879. The motion prevailed.

Engen moved that the name of Knudsen be added as an author on H. F. No. 2881. The motion prevailed.

Perryman moved that the name of Wolgamott be added as an author on H. F. No. 2888. The motion prevailed.

Nelson moved that the name of Scott be added as an author on H. F. No. 2897. The motion prevailed.

Rehrauer moved that the names of Norris and Freiberg be added as authors on H. F. No. 2901. The motion prevailed.

Reyer moved that the name of Keeler be added as an author on H. F. No. 2903. The motion prevailed.

Reyer moved that the names of Bierman and Falconer be added as authors on H. F. No. 2904. The motion prevailed.

Smith moved that the name of Sencer-Mura be added as an author on H. F. No. 2906. The motion prevailed.

Hansen, R., moved that the name of Huot be added as an author on H. F. No. 2917. The motion prevailed.

Hanson, J., moved that the name of Jones be added as an author on H. F. No. 2920. The motion prevailed.

Frazier moved that the name of Virnig be added as an author on H. F. No. 2922. The motion prevailed.

Freiberg moved that H. F. No. 1378, now on the General Register, be re-referred to the Committee on Elections Finance and Government Operations. The motion prevailed.

ADJOURNMENT

Niska moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn until 12:15 p.m., Wednesday, April 2, 2025. The motion prevailed.

Niska moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and the Speaker declared the House stands adjourned until 12:15 p.m., Wednesday, April 2, 2025.

PATRICK DUFFY MURPHY, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives